# All-Bottle 744/1544 Installation/Service and User Manual

June 1997

# **BERG COMPANY, LLC**

#### FCC Information:

This device complies with Part 15 of FCC rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) This device may not cause harmful interference and, (2) this device must accept any interference received including interference that may cause undesired operation.

Note: The user is cautioned that any changes or modifications not expressly approved by the party responsible for FCC compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

Copyright © 1996, 1997 by Berg Company. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language in any form by any means without the written permission of Berg Company, Madison, Wisconsin.

Trademarks

All-Bottle 744 and All-Bottle 1544 are registered trademarks of Berg Company, LLC.

Other brand and product names may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

Berg Part Number: 5201438

Revision 1.00

Printed in U.S.A.

B.M.P.N. 5201437

#### Disclaimer of Warranties and Liabilities

#### Disclaimer of Limited One Year Warranty

Berg Company, a Wisconsin Limited Liability Corporation (BERG), warrants that all its Control Systems (SYSTEMS) will remain free from defects in materials and workmanship for a period of one (1) year from the date of original installation. BERG'S obligation under this Warranty shall be limited to the repair or replacement (at BERG'S option) of the SYSTEM or its defective part(s) during the warranty period. This Warranty is not assignable and is for the benefit of the original end-user purchaser only. BERG neither assumes nor authorizes anyone to assume on its behalf any obligations not covered by the Warranty.

THIS WARRANTY IS EXCLUSIVE AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, ORAL OR WRITTEN, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUD-ING THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

#### CONDITION AND EXCLUSIONS

No defect (failure) caused by misuse, abuse, improper installation, lack of normal care or maintenance, accident or Act of God is covered by the foregoing Warranty. Said Warranty is limited to repair or replacement (at BERG'S option) only and does not include any labor or transportation charges or compliance with any Federal, State or local laws, codes or regulation. Notice of any claimed breach of said Warranty must be promptly given to the authorized dealer from whom the System was purchased or leased. Upon request, all Systems or parts which are claimed to be defective must be made available for inspection by and/or return to (at BERG'S option) such authorized dealer and/or BERG. No repair or replacement under said warranty will extend the original warranty period.

#### LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

IN NO EVENT SHALL BERG BE LIABLE UNDER ANY TORT, CON-TRACT OR OTHER LEGAL THEORY FOR ANY LOSS, COST, EXPENSE OR INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND IN CONNECTION WITH THE DESIGN, SALE, USE, REPAIR AND/OR REPLACEMENT OF ANY SYSTEM OR PART THEREOF, EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY NOTED ABOVE.

#### BERG COMPANY

#### **Disclaimer of Other Warranties and Liabilities**

While all reasonable care has been taken in preparation of this product, it is provided "as is," without warranty as to performance or fitness except as expressly stated above. The entire risk as to the quality of output developed with this product is assumed by the user.

Berg Company does not warrant that the software or system will meet any particular requirements of the user, other than as expressly stated above, and specifically denies any liability for incidental or consequential damages resulting from the use of this software or system.

Berg Company also specifically denies all liability for any technical or editorial omissions in its product documentation, and for any incidental or consequential damages resulting from the furnishing, performance or use of its documentation.

# Contents

#### Safety

General Safety Precautions	. vi
Safety Terms and Symbols	vii

#### **Getting Started**

#### 1-1

2-1

Option Packages	1-2
System Components	1-4
Installation Game Plan	1-6
Gather Customer Setup Information	1-7
Accessing the ECU Dealer Menu	1-8
Accessing the ECU Manager Menu	1-9
Accessing the ECU Server Menu	. 1-10
Navigating the ECU Menus	. 1-11
Tools and Materials Required	. 1-14

#### Hardware Installation

# Install the ECU2-2Install the All-Bottle Coded Pourers2-4Interface the ECU to an Electronic Cash Register2-6Interface the ECU to a Parallel Printer2-8Interface the ECU to a Serial Printer or Computer2-10Install Flow Meters2-12Install a Remote Server Access Box2-14Connect an External Solenoid Output2-16Install a Switchbox with a Serial Printer or Computer Interface2-18Test the System2-20

#### **ECU Setup**

#### 3-1

Country Setup	
Volume Units	
Price Format	
Decimal Character	
Time Format	
Date Format	
Return to Factory Setup	
Cumulative Sales Password	
Diagnostic Messages	
Default Messages	
Set Time and Date	3-13

Serial Port Setup	. 3-14
Set Station Number	. 3-15
Linefeeds to Printer	. 3-16
Enable OFF Signal	. 3-17

# Access Keys

Read an Access Key	4-2
Read a Remote Server Access Key	4-3
Make a Manager Key	4-4
Make a Server Key	4-5
Key Assignment List	4-6

# **Pouring Control**

Disable Unit	5-2
Enable Computer Communication	5-3
Enable Price Level Change	5-4
Reset After Pour	5-5
Server Menu Active	5-6
Restart Pour Delay	5-7

# Calibration, Prices, Portions and PLUs

Calibrate Coded Pourers	6-2
Define Portion Sizes	6-4
Define Prices	6-5
Define PLUs	6-6
Define Flow Meter Price per Unit	6-7
Set Flow Meter Counts	6-8
Clear All-Bottle Prices, Portions and PLUs	6-10
Clear Flow Meter Prices	6-11
Clear All Prices, Portions and PLUs	6-12
Portion Change Lockout	6-13

# **All-Bottle Pouring**

Pour a Drink	7-2
Repeat a Pour	7-3
Pour with Server ID	7-4
Pour with Flow Meters and Server ID	7-6

# **5-1**

4-1

# 6-1

#### 7-1

### Reports

Summary Reports (X and Z)	8-2
Detailed Reports (X and Z)	
Last Z Report	
Hourly Sales Report	8-8
Price Level Change Report	8-10
Configuration Report	8-12
Price/Portion Report	8-14
PLU Report	8-16
All Server Summary Reports (X and Z)	8-18
Individual Server Summary Reports (X and Z)	8-20
Individual Server Reports Using the Server Menu	8-22
Clear Cumulative Sales	

## Maintenance and Upgrading

Clean the ECU	9-2
Clean the Coded Pourers	9-3
Replace the ECU Battery	9-4
Change the EPROM	9-6
Install an Option Board	9-8

# All-Bottle Manager Software

Install the Software	10-2
Communication Settings	10-4
Price and Volume Units	10-5
Select an ECU Type	10-6
Transfer Data between the ECU and the Computer	10-8
Define Portion Sizes and Prices	10-10
Define PLUs	10-12
Set Flow Meter Counts and Price per Unit	10-14
Print Setup Data	10-16
Key Assignment List	10-18
Generate Reports	10-20
Perform a Loopback Test	10-22
Perform a Communication Test	10-23
Check Option Package	10-24
Diagnostic Mode	10-25
All-Bottle Manager Files	10-26

#### 10-1

9-1

### 8-1

All-Bottle 744/1544 Specifications	11-1
Basic System Specifications Option Package Specifications Technical Specifications	11-2 11-2 11-3
Troubleshooting	12-1
Bar Management Tips	13-1
Coded Pourer Assignment	13-2
Portioning Guidelines	13-8
Pricing Guidelines	13-10

Index

# **General Safety Precautions**

Review the following precautions to avoid injury and to prevent damage to the product.



#### Precautions

- To reduce the risk of electric shock, use only in a dry indoor location.
- To prevent the risk of electric shock connect the unit to a properly grounded power source using an IEC approved 3pronged power cord. After installation of this equipment, access to the power cord and the mains power source receptacle must not be blocked or restricted.
- To avoid damage to the unit, be sure that the alternating current (AC) power supply in your area is appropriate for this equipment. Power requirements are detailed under *Technical Specifications* in the *All-Bottle 744/1544 Specifications* section of this manual.
- For technical information about this product contact your local Berg dealer or call the Berg Company at (608) 221-4281 between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 4:30 P.M. C.S.T.

# Safety Terms and Symbols

Review the following terms and symbols to avoid injury and to prevent damage to the product.

Terms in This Manual	These terms may appear in this manual:
$\triangle$	<b>Warning.</b> Warning statements identify conditions or practices that could result in injury or loss of life.
$\triangle$	<b>Caution.</b> Caution statements identify conditions or practices that could result in damage to this product or other property.
Terms on the Product	These terms may appear on the product:
	Caution indicates a hazard to property including this product.
Symbols on the Product	The following symbols may appear on the product:
$\triangle$	Attention. Consult accompanying documents.

# Getting Started

The general guidelines provided in this section can help you take the necessary steps to make each **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** installation run as smoothly as possible.

Option Packages	1-2
System Components	1-4
Installation Game Plan	1-6
Gather Customer Setup Information	1-7
Accessing the ECU Dealer Menu	1-8
Accessing the ECU Manager Menu	1-9
Accessing the ECU Server Menu	1-10
Navigating the ECU Menus	1-11
Tools and Materials Required	1-14

# **Option Packages**

The **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** is a multi-beverage system that provides liquor control using seven (**744**) or fifteen (**1544**) different price codes. The system's multiple features come in different option packages which are defined by the hardware and firmware (EPROM) installed in the ECU. An authorized Berg dealer can upgrade a system with a new option package at any time. This manual provides the necessary detail to successfully install an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** as well as upgrade the ECU to any option package. The **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** option packages are:

744-Basic	Provides liquor control using Berg's patented coded pourers. Different price codes can be programmed to pour four portion sizes at each of four price levels. Can be linked to a computer with the optional Berg software package <b>All-Bottle Manager</b> for ease of ECU programming.
744-CR	Offers communication between the ECU and an electronic cash register in addition to the <b>Basic</b> functions. With this capability, sales are tallied automatically at the cash register as they occur at the bar.
744-AR 1544-AR	Provides a full range of detailed sales reports in addition to a cash register interface and the <b>Basic</b> functions. The reports can be sent directly to a printer or computer.
744-FM 1544-FM	Offers tracking of pulse output meters that monitor total sales and volume poured from beer, wine or soda lines in addition to sales reports, a cash register interface and the <b>Basic</b> functions.
744-ID 1544-ID	Offers security and server accountability in addition to sales reports, a cash register interface and the <b>Basic</b> functions. The ECU can only be "unlocked" for dispensing when an active server or bartender access key is inserted. An optional remote server access box provides easy access to all servers.
744-DX 1544-DX	Provides flow meter monitoring, server ID, advanced reporting and an electronic cash register interface in addition to the <b>Basic</b> functions.



An optional ECR interface provides direct sales communication between All-Bottle 744 or 1544 and an electronic cash register. (option package AR, FM, ID, DX and 744-CR)

The optional advanced reporting package supports 80 column printer output of sales reports. (option package AR, FM, ID, DX)

# **System Components**

The All Bottle 744 or 1544 Multi-Beverage System offers basic features and several options from one compact, cost-effective unit. You can customize your system using the following components.

ECU (Electronic Control Unit)	The compact, lightweight console that controls pouring operations. One unit provides free-pouring style control for an unlimited number of brands.
Activator Ring	A circular receiver attached to the ECU that reads the electronic price information on coded pourers. It sits in a holder when not in use and easily slips over the top of a bottle for pouring.
Coded Pourer	Specially designed pourers inserted and sealed into each liquor bottle. Metal coding bands in seven (744) or fifteen (1544) different combinations electronically identify price and portion information to the ECU. Two types of pourers are available– standard flow and high flow.
Access Key	A small, electronically-coded key that must be inserted in a slot in the ECU to access the ECU menus. In option packages ID and DX, an access key must be inserted to pour drinks.
Flow Meter	Pulse output meter installed in beer, wine, soda or juice lines that transmits information to the ECU to calculate the volume of beverage poured. One ECU can monitor up to three flow meters.
Remote Server Access Box	A small key-slot box that can be used with option package ID or DX to provide easy access to the system for servers placing drink orders at the bar.
Battery Power Supply	An optional battery based power supply for use in portable or temporary installations where an AC outlet is not available.
All-Bottle Manager Software	Provides the option of entering All-Bottle setup information and generating reports at a computer rather than the ECU.
	Caution



#### **Operating Environment**

The components that comprise the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system have been designed to perform well in a typical bar, restaurant, or stadium environment. However, as with all electronic equipment, certain guidelines should be followed in locating the components. For the ECU, Power Supply and Remote Server Access Box, a protected, dry and clean location is required. The operating temperature range for these components is from  $5^{\circ}$  C to  $40^{\circ}$  C ( $41^{\circ}$  F to  $104^{\circ}$  F).



9 lb (4.1 kg)

Cable

Flow meter to ECU Power supply to ECU Remote Server Access Box to ECU Computer to ECU (RS-485)

Length 500 feet (152.4 meters) 3 feet (.91 meters) 6 feet (1.83 meters) 4000 feet

**Electrical Requirement** 100 - 240 VAC, 50-60Hz., or 12 VDC **Power Consumption** 0.7 amps peak 88.5 milliamps average (300 drinks/hr) Battery 12V 7Ah Sealed re-chargeable lead acid

# **Installation Game Plan**

Berg offers the following checklist to expedite your installation of the All-Bottle 744 or 1544.

Available in Option Package	(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
All-Bottle 744 or 1544 Installation	The syst loca thro	sequence of step em follows the o te information q ughout the manu	ps used to in order tasks a juickly and o jal.	nstall an A appear in easily, rel	All-Bottle this manu ated task	e <b>744</b> or 1al. To h s are gro	<b>1544</b> nelp you ouped
Getting Started	<b>1</b> .	Gather custom All-Bottle 744	her setup inf 4 or 1544 to	ormation Berg.	and subr	nit orde	r for
[	<b>2</b> .	Record the cus	stomer's pri-	ce and po	ortion info	ormation	1.
Į	3.	Set an installat materials.	tion date and	d assemb	le require	d tools	and
[	<b>4</b> .	Perform any p <b>744</b> or <b>1544</b> E	re-installati CU.	on progra	amming o	f the <b>Al</b>	l-Bottle
Hardware Installation	<b>3</b> 5.	Install the All	Bottle 744	or <b>1544</b> l	ECU.		
[	<b>6</b> .	Install the All-	Bottle code	d pourers			
(	<b>]</b> 7.	Interface the 7	'44 or 1544	to an EC	R (CR, A	AR, FM,	ID, DX).
Į	₿.	Interface the 7 software, AR,	44 or 1544 FM, ID, D2	to a print X only).	er/PC (M	lanager	
[	<b>9</b> .	Install a Remo	ote Server A	ccess Bo	x (ID, DX	K only).	
Į	<b>1</b> 0	. Install flow me	eters (FM, I	OX only)			
System Configuration	<b>]</b> 11	Perform one-ti	ime ECU se	tup tasks			
Į	<b>1</b> 12	. Select pouring	control fea	tures and	enter inte	o the EC	CU.
Į	<b>]</b> 13	. Calibrate the c	coded poure	rs.			
(	<b>1</b> 4	. Install <b>All-Bot</b>	ttle Manage	e <b>r</b> softwa	re (optior	nal).	
Į	<b>1</b> 5	Enter brands, j using the ECU	prices, porti J keypad or J	on sizes Manage	and PLUs r software	s into the e.	e ECU
ί	<b>]</b> 16	Make server k into the ECU u	eys (ID, DX using the EC	K only). E CU keypa	inter valic d or <b>Mar</b>	l server nager so	names oftware.
ί	<b>]</b> 17	Enter flow me keypad or <b>Ma</b>	ter counts a <b>nager</b> softw	nd price price price price price price price price price (FM	per unit u , DX only	sing the	ECU

# **Gather Customer Setup Information**

As you make ordering plans for an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system, gather specific information from each customer.

Available in Option Package	s): 🗹 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	⊠ DX		
Assess the site and the customer's needs	Which version of a customer's needs? to order, consider t	All-Bottle 74 Once you've the following	4 or 154 determin question	<b>4</b> best me ned which s.	ets the option	package		
	All option packag All-Bottle Manag is the computer log	ges: Where w ger software b cated? How v	ill the EC be part of vill you c	CU be inst the syste onnect it	alled? V m? If so to the E	Vill the , where CU?		
	<b>Option package</b> be ordered from the	<b>Option package CR, AR, ID, FM, DX:</b> Does hardware need to be ordered from the cash register company?						
	<b>Option package</b> A or computer? What	AR, ID, FM, at cables are n	DX: Will eeded? H	ll reports Iow long	go to a j must the	printer ey be?		
	<b>Option package ID, DX:</b> Does the customer want a remote server access box? Where will it be installed? How many server will use the equipment?							
	<b>Option package FM, DX:</b> Where will the flow meters be installed? Where will the cables run?							
	With the answers t map of the propose the customer.	to these quest ed system and	ions, you d clarify	i can sket any impor	ch out a rtant poi	rough ints with		
Assess the size of the system	How many coded order? See <i>Coded Tips</i> section.	pourers of ea Pourer Assig	ch price o <i>nment</i> in	code do ye the <i>Bar l</i>	ou need Manage	to <i>ment</i>		
	How many differe	nt sized inser	ts do you	need for	the pour	rers?		
	How many boxes	of security se	als?					
Learn the customer's formatting preferences and price structure	Record the custom preferences so the <i>Setup</i> and <i>Pouring</i> choices.	ner's formatti y can be ente g <i>Control</i> sect	ng and po red into t ions for o	buring con he ECU. details reg	ntrol See the l garding	ECU these		
	Record the custom applicable).	ner's portion s	sizes, prie	ces and Pl	LUs (if			

# Accessing the ECU Dealer Menu

The **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU has several features that can be customized according to the needs of each owner. At the time of installation, an authorized Berg dealer performs these installation, setup and diagnostic tasks using the ECU's Dealer Menu. You can only access this menu with a valid **Dealer** access key inserted in the ECU's front key slot.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



#### To access the Dealer Menu:

- 1. Insert a **Dealer** access key in the ECU's front key slot.
- 2. Press the ENTER (,...) button on the ECU keypad.

Useî↓ and ENTER	۲ ا
Dealer Menu	

The **Dealer Menu** option is displayed.

3. Press ENTER to select this menu.

IIcoî.	and	FNTER	.1
Exit	This	Menu	4

You are now inside the Dealer Menu. **Exit This Menu** is the first option in the menu. Use the up and down arrow keys to view other options.

# Accessing the ECU Manager Menu

For your All-Bottle 744 or 1544 system to operate, the ECU must be programmed with the various options available for pouring. In the ECU's Manager Menu, you perform a variety of manager functions including assigning portion sizes and prices, setting pouring controls and generating reports. You can access this menu with a **Dealer** or **Manager** access key.

#### Available in Option Package(s): ☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ⊠ AR ☑ FM ⊠ ID ⊠ DX



- To access the Manager Menu (Dealer key):
- Insert a **Dealer** access key in the ECU's front key slot.
- 2. Press the ENTER  $(\downarrow)$  button on the ECU keypad.

The **Dealer Menu** option is displayed.

3. Use the down arrow to select the **Manager Menu** option

You are now inside the Manager Menu. Exit This **Menu** is the first option in the menu. Use the up and down arrow keys to view other options.

- To access the Manager Menu (Manager key):
- Insert a **Manager** access key in the ECU's front key slot.
- 2. Press the ENTER  $(\downarrow)$  button on the ECU keypad.

#### The **Manager Menu** option is displayed.

Press ENTER to select this menu.

You are now inside the Manager Menu. Exit This Menu is the first option in the menu. Use the up and down arrow keys to view other options.

# Accessing the ECU Server Menu

If you have option package ID or DX, the ECU's Server Menu allows each server access to his or her own sales reports. You can access this menu with a **Dealer**, **Manager** or **Server** key.

☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ⊠ AR ☑ FM ⊠ ID ⊠ DX Available in Option Package(s): To access the Server Menu (Dealer/Manager key): Dealer or

option is displayed.

and press ENTER.

1. Insert a **Dealer** or **Manager** access key in the ECU's front key slot.

The Dealer Menu option or the Manager Menu

Use the down arrow to select the **Server Menu** option

You are now inside the Server Menu. **Exit This Menu** 

2. Press the ENTER  $( \downarrow )$  button on the ECU keypad.

Use1↓ and ENTER ↓ Manager Menu

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Server Menu

Use↑↓ and ENTER ↓ Exit This Menu

Manager

is the first option in the menu. Use the up and down arrow keys to view other options.

3.



Use1↓ and ENTER ↓ Server Menu

Use↑↓ and ENTER ↓ Exit This Menu

To access the Server Menu (Server key): 

- 1. Insert a **Server** access key in the ECU's front key slot.
- 2. Press the ENTER  $(\downarrow)$  button on the ECU keypad.

The Server Menu option is displayed.

3. Press ENTER to select this menu.

You are now inside the Server Menu. **Exit This Menu** is the first option in the menu. Use the up and down arrow keys to view other options.

1-10 All-Bottle 744/1544 Installation/Service/User Manual

# Navigating the ECU Menus

The LCD display on the ECU functions like a narrow window, highlighting your current position in a menu. The ECU keypad is your steering device; you use it to control your movement through the menus and to select your options.

Available in Option Package(	s): 🗹 744-Basic	⊠ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ID	⊠ DX
Reading the Display	The display windo time. The first line action. For instanc and down arrow ke ENTER to select a	w on the EC is normally e, Use↑↓ a eys to change in option.	U shows a prompt ind EN your po	two lines asking yo TER 니n sition in t	of text a ou to tak neans us he menu	at a te some se the up and
	The second line in position in the men input for a selected	the display w nu. This seco l menu option	vindow n nd line is n.	narks you also usec	r curren l to rece	t ive user
Using the Keypad	The ECU keypad i you forward or "do back "up" the men to change the posit	s very easy to own" the mer u. Use the let ion of the edi	o use. Th nu while ft <b>(←</b> ) ar it cursor.	e down ar the up arr ad right (–	rrow (↓) ow (↑) ta →) arrov	moves akes you v keys
Getting Where You Want to Go	The up and down they do not cycle you are at the bott you back at the to	arrow keys ta through the c om of the me p.)	ake you ' hoices in enu, the c	'up'' or ''d a continu lown arro	lown" th Ious loog w does i	e menu; p. (If not put
	If you are in a sub <b>This Menu</b> op	-menu, use the tion to return	he up arr to the m	row to sele nain menu	ect the <b>E</b>	xit
All-Bonlě 744 BERG				ENTER Ke menu optio enters key	y: Select ons and/ red input	5 or
ABCD S	R L SP					

LEFT Arrow: Moves the edit cursor to the left in the display window

UP Arrow: Moves the display window to the previous menu option

RIGHT Arrow: Moves the edit cursor to the right in the display window

DOWN Arrow: Moves the display window to the next menu option



Degler Manu Ontions	Available in Option Package(s)						
Dealer Menu Options	Basic	CR	AR	FM	ID	DX	
Exit this Menu	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	
Access Keys	√	√	✓	1	✓	1	
Exit this Menu	✓	✓	✓	1	1	1	
Read First Key	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	
Read Second Key					1	1	
Make Manager Key					1	✓	
Make Server Key					1	1	
Country Setup	✓	✓	✓	1	1	1	
Exit this Menu	✓	✓	✓	1	✓	1	
Set Volume Units	✓	✓	✓	1	1	1	
Set Price Format			✓	✓	✓	1	
Set Decimal Char.	1	✓	✓	1	1	1	
Set Time Format			✓	✓	✓	1	
Set Date Format			✓	✓	✓	✓	
Rtn to factory setup	✓	✓	✓	1	1	1	
Cum Sales Password			1	1	1	1	
Diagnostic Messages	✓	✓	1	1	1	1	
Default Messages	1	✓	✓	✓	✓	1	

The first line in the display window tells you to use the arrow keys to move up or down the list or the ENTER key to select this option.

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Set Price Format

> The second line in the display window marks your current position in the ECU menus.

Manager Menu Options	Available in Option Packag					
	Basic	CR	AR	FM	ID	DX
Exit this Menu	✓	√	✓	✓	√	✓
Disable Unit	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Access Keys	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Exit this Menu	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Read First Key	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Read Second Key					✓	✓
Make Server Key					✓	✓
Communications	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
View Reports	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Exit this Menu	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Summary Z	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Detailed Z	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Summary X	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
Detailed X	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
All Server Summary Z					✓	✓
All Server Summary X					✓	✓
Summary Z by Server					✓	✓
Summary X by Server					✓	✓

Manager Ment Options (Conc.)BasicCRARFMIDD2Last ZIDIDIDIDIDIDIDHourly SalesIDIDIDIDIDIDPrice Level ChangeIDIDIDIDIDConfigurationIDIDIDIDID	DX 
Last ZImage: ConfigurationImage: Configu	✓ ✓
Hourly Sales     Image: Configuration	- ✓
Price Level ChangeImage: ConfigurationImage: ConfigurationImage: ConfigurationImage: Configuration	
Configuration $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	√
	√
Price/Portion $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
PLU $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Key Assignment 🗸 🗸	✓
Exit this Menu 🗸 🗸	✓
01 (through 15)-includes Make Key option 🗸 🗸	✓
Price Level Change (by manager only) $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Reset After Pour $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Server Menu Active 🗸 🗸	✓
Restart Pour Delay 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
Set Time and Date 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
Serial Port Setup 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	√
Exit this Menu $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Set Baud Rate $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Set Word Length 🗸 🗸 🏑 🗸 🗸	✓
Set Parity 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
Set Stop Bits $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Set Station Number 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
All-Bottle Setup 🗸 🗸 🏑 🗸 🗸	✓
Exit this Menu $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Code 1 (through 7) or (through 15) $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Exit this Menu 🗸 🗸 🏑 🗸 🗸	✓
Set Portion $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Set Price 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
Set PLU 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
Flow Meter Setup	✓
Exit this Menu 🗸 🗸	✓
Flow Meter 1 (through 3)	✓
Exit this Menu 🗸 🗸	✓
Meter Count	✓
Set Price/Unit (levels A through D)	✓
Clear Price/Por/PLUS $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	✓
Exit this Menu 🗸 🗸 🗸 🗸	✓
All-Bottle Data	✓
Flow Meter Prices	✓
All Price/Por/PLUs	~
Printer Config	
Exit this Menu	 ✓
Linefeeds to Printer	· ·
Enable OFF signal	· ·
Clear Cum Sales	· · ·
Calibrate / / / / /	
Exit this Menu	
Code 1 (through 7) or (through 15) $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$ $\checkmark$	

Server Menu Options		Available in Option Package(s)						
		CR	AR	FM	ID	DX		
Exit this Menu					✓	✓		
Summary X by Server					1	~		

# **Tools and Materials Required**

Berg offers the following list to help in your preparation for an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** installation.

Available in Option Package	s):	☑ 744-Basic	⊠ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
Tools Required	<u> </u>	Small slotted s Small Phillips Small jeweler' Nut driver (3/ Hex wrench (1 PROM remove Measuring cup Tubing cutter of Tubing clamps Diagonal cutter Jacket for wor Loop back test	screwdriver (#2 pt.) screw ?s screwdrive: 16 in) l/16 in) er p or graduate (if installing : s (if installing ers king in coole ter	wdriver r d cylinde flow met g flow me r (if insta	er (for cali ers) eters) Illing flow	bration) / meters	)
	You tool	1 may also need ls if you are ins	l drills, holes talling flow r	aws and preters or	possibly c other exte	other pov ensive c	wer abling.
Materials Required	$\overline{\mathbf{V}}$	Various flow r Cable hold-do	neter fittings wns	(if instal	ling flow	meters)	
Equipment Preparation	Ma sho box ver	ke sure the <b>All</b> p a few days be tes and check to ify nothing was	<b>Bottle 744</b> c efore you pla o see you hav damaged du	or <b>1544</b> e n to insta e everyth ring ship	quipment ll the syst ing you n ping.	arrives em. Op eed. Als	at your en the so,

# Hardware Installation

Installing the hardware of an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system is not a difficult process. Each task can be broken down into simple procedures that are easily accomplished.

It is best to install the system early in the week, giving the bartenders a few days to operate the system before a busy weekend. It is also best to install the system early in the morning, before any bartenders arrive. Refer to this section for help with the following tasks:

Install the ECU	2-2
Install the All-Bottle Coded Pourers	2-4
Interface the ECU to an Electronic Cash Register	2-6
Interface the ECU to a Parallel Printer	2-8
Interface the ECU to a Serial Printer or Computer	2-10
Install Flow Meters	2-12
Install a Remote Server Access Box	2-14
Connect an External Solenoid Output	2-16
Install a Switchbox with a Serial Printer or Computer Interfa	ce2-18
Test the System	2-20

# Install the ECU

The **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU is designed for easy installation under the bar top at the bartender's work station. It should be mounted 1/4 inch to 3/4 inch (.6 cm to 1.6 cm) back from the front edge of the bar to help protect it from liquid damage. Install the ECU and power supply as far away from sinks, dishwashers and other sources of water or steam as is practical.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX

#### To install the ECU:

- 1. Attach the cable that connects the power supply (AC adaptor) to the ECU. Use the 3-pin J8A port on the back of the ECU. Tighten the connecting screws.
- 2. Mount the power supply in a secure, dry location with the 2 wood screws provided. Select a location within 3 feet (.9 meters) of the ECU and within 5 1/2 feet (1.7 meters) of a properly grounded 110 VAC (or 220 VAC) electrical outlet.
- 3. Attach any flow meter, printer/PC, ECR, or remote server access box cables to the back of the ECU before mounting the ECU to insure ease of access. See the appropriate tasks in this section.
- 4. Secure the activator ring cable to either the right or left side of the ECU using the cable clamp and an existing screw on the ECU.
- 5. Mount the ECU securely under the bar using the four wood screw provided.
- 6. Mount the activator ring holder to the right or left of the ECU using 4 wood screws. Mount the holder to a secure surface where it will be within the bartender's convenient reach.

#### Note

- □ The connector for the power supply will fit in the J8A port or the J4B port. If it is inserted into the J4B port by mistake, the unit will not operate.
- □ An optional battery based power supply is available for portable ECU installations. Order Berg PN 8005700 for the battery power supply or Berg PN 8005708 for the battery and a charger.



All-Bottle 744 ECU



Activator ring holder

Activator ring



#### Caution



#### **Operating Environment**

The components that comprise the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system have been designed to perform well in a typical bar, restaurant, or stadium environment. However, as with all electronic equipment, certain guidelines should be followed in locating the components. For the ECU, Power Supply and Remote Server Access Box, a protected, dry and clean location is required. The operating temperature range for these components is from 5° C to 40° C (41° F to 104° F).

# Install the All-Bottle Coded Pourers

To insure a perfect fit in each liquor bottle, Berg offers inserts (the part of the coded pourer that fits in the bottle) in four sizes. To complete an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** installation, be sure to have an ample supply of varying sizes of inserts, an appropriate number of each of the seven or fifteen price coded pourers and a box of security seals.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>	
	To install the	e All-Bottle	coded	pourers	5:		
1.	Select the appr attach the righ mylar tab from	Select the appropriately coded pourer for the liquor bottle and attach the right size insert. Remove a numbered seal and mylar tab from the box of security seals.					
2.	Firmly insert t	he pourer int	o the bot	tle.			
3.	Slide the open with the adhes with the notch onto the neck	Slide the opening in the mylar tab over the top of the pourer with the adhesive side down. Align the notch in the mylar tab with the notch in the pourer. Pull both tab ends down tight onto the neck of the bottle.					
4.	Wrap a number mylar tab ends the seal. The le lower edge of	ered seal arous Make sure ower edge of the mylar tab	you can the seal a ends.	eck of the still read t should be	bottle a the num even wi	nd the ber on th the	
5.	Repeat steps 1	-4 for each li	quor bot	tle.			
-	To change a pourers:	n insert or	the Al	l-Bottle	coded		
1.	Remove the cu coded pourer.	urrent insert b	by pulling	g and twis	sting it fr	rom the	
2.	Select a new s (Berg PN 900 9007122), and large insert (B	ize insert. Ch 7281), a stan oversize inse erg PN 9008	doose from dard size rt (Berg 1 799).	m an unde 9 insert (B PN 90072	ersize ins erg PN 282) or a	sert In extra	
3.	Push the new i	nsert onto th	e coded j	oourer.			
Να	ote						
	Standard flow different rates in an existing or if you are u EPROM versi	pourers and If you are in system with l sing standard on 1.09 or hi	high flov stalling l EPROM l flow po gher, see	w pourers nigh flow version lo urers in a the Note	calibrat coded p ower tha system s in <i>Cali</i>	e at ourers n 1.09, with <i>brate</i>	

PLUs section.

Coded Pourers in the Calibration, Prices, Portions and



# Interface the ECU to an Electronic Cash Register

If you want to take advantage of the ECR interface capability in option packages CR, AR, FM, ID or DX, you need to make the necessary hardware connections for communication between the ECU and cash register to take place.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic	⊠ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
	To interface	the ECU to	o an EC	R:		
1.	Find out what the ECU. You the cash regist connect the EC the cash regist If your cash re Berg ECR inte about obtainin	the cash regis may have to er. At the ver CU to the cas er company v gister represe erface, contac	ster need order a s y least, y h register well in ad entative i et your Be d interfac	s to comn pecific be you need a r. Order th lvance of s not fam erg dealer ce hardwa	nunicate bard to in a cable to nese part the insta iliar wit for mon- re.	with nstall in o ts from all date. h the re details
2.	Make sure any register. Conn	v necessary ha	ardware i f the cab	is installe le to the c	d in the ash regi	cash ster.
3.	Connect the of using the 15-p	ther end of th in J5A port. 7	e cable to Fighten tl	o the back	t of the E ting scr	ECU ews.
4.	Get a list of th register. You w <i>PLUs</i> in the <i>C</i>	e PLUs assig vill need to en <i>calibration, P</i>	ned to ea nter these <i>rices, Po</i>	ach drink e at the EC ortions an	at the ca CU. See <i>d PLUs</i>	ash <i>Define</i> section.
Nc	ote					
	If you are inst as an upgrade you need to ch <i>EPROM</i> in the	alling option to an existing nange the EPI e <i>Maintenanc</i>	package g <b>All-Bot</b> ROM in t <i>re and Up</i>	<b>CR, AR</b> tt <b>le 744</b> o the ECU.	, <b>FM, II</b> r <b>1544</b> s See <i>Chc</i> section.	<b>)</b> or <b>DX</b> system, <i>ange the</i>



Electronic cash register



port on the back of the ECU

# Interface the ECU to a Parallel Printer

If you are installing option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID**, or **DX**, you need to provide a connection between a printer and the ECU for printing reports. You can connect to a printer directly or connect to a computer and use the **All-Bottle Manager** software to print reports. See *Interface the ECU to a Serial Printer or Computer* in this section.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX

# ■ To interface the ECU to a parallel (Centronics) printer:

- 1. Connect a parallel printer cable to the back of the ECU using the 25-pin J3B port.
- 2. Connect the other end of the cable to your printer.

#### Note

□ If you are installing option package AR, FM, ID or DX as an upgrade to an existing All-Bottle 744 or 1544 system, you need to install an option board and change the EPROM in the ECU. See *Install an Option Board* and *Change the EPROM* in the *Maintenance and Upgrading* section.





# Interface the ECU to a Serial Printer or Computer

If you are installing **All-Bottle Manager** software (with any option package), you need to provide a connection between a computer and the ECU. If you are installing option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**, and not using the software, you have the option of connecting directly to a printer for reports. Connecting to a serial printer or a computer requires the RS-232 / RS-485 converter. If you are connecting the ECU directly to a parallel printer, see *Interface the ECU to a Parallel Printer* in this section.

Available in Option Package(s):	$\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$
■ DX	To interface the ECU to a serial printer (AR, FM, ID, conly) or computer:
1.	Plug the connector from the power transformer into the side of the RS-232 / RS-485 converter (Berg PN 8009344).
2.	Plug the power transformer into the same buffered power strip used by the printer or computer.
3.	Insert the RS-232 / RS-485 converter into a serial port of the printer or computer and secure it with the captive screws in the connector flanges.
	If the converter does not fit in the serial port, insert a 9-to25- pin adapter cable.
4.	Insert the communication cable plug into the RJ-11 socket on the converter.
5.	Insert the other end of the communication cable into the J6A port on the back of the ECU.
No	ites
	If you have option package <b>744-Basic</b> or <b>744-CR</b> , you won't be able to interface to a printer, but you may want to interface to a computer to use the <b>All-Bottle Manager</b> software to load portion sizes or PLUs.
	To connect more than one ECU to one printer or computer see Install a Switchbox with a Serial Printer or Computer Interface.

□ A serial printer package (Berg PN 8005546) is available from Berg which includes an Epson 300 printer, 3 ft cable and the RS-232 to RS-485 converter.




Computer



## **Install Flow Meters**

Before installing flow meters make sure the taps are closed and the door to the cooler is closed. If you leave the cooler door open, the temperature of the beverage will rise which causes excess foaming and makes calibration difficult.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic □ 744-CR □ AR ☑ FM □ ID ☑ DX
	To install flow meters:
1.	Record and save the flow meter count number stamped on the flow meter(s). (You use this number later in the calibration process.)
2.	Turn off pressure to the beverage line(s) and disconnect any kegs.
3.	Determine where to insert the flow meter(s) in the line(s). Plan enough length in the line to secure the flow meter(s) to the wall or other surface.
4.	Cut the beverage line.
5.	Install the flow meter(s) into the line(s). First slide clamps around each end of the line, then insert the flow meter and tighten the clamps. Make sure the flow meter is installed with the "flow" arrow pointing toward the end of the tube that goes to the faucet.
6.	Secure the flow meter(s) to the cooler wall (or other place) with #6 wood or sheet metal screws. You can mount the flow meter vertically on the wall or horizontally on a shelf. Do not mount the flow meter at a diagonal or any other angle. If you mount it horizontally, be sure the bracket is on the bottom or top of the flow meter and not the side. The flow meter is originally calibrated in a vertical position, so this is the preferred position for mounting.
7.	Carefully strip about 3 in $(7.6 \text{ cm})$ of outer insulation from the flow meter cable(s) going to the ECU and about 3/16 in $(.5 \text{ cm})$ of insulation from each individual wire in the flow meter cable(s).
8.	Connect the individual wires of the flow meter cable(s) to the flow meter cable terminal block. Loosen the screws on the terminal block and match each wire to the appropriate pin using the accompanying pin/signal diagram.
9.	Connect the flow meter cable terminal block to the back of

screws.

the ECU using the 10-pin J2B port. Tighten the connecting



## **Install a Remote Server Access Box**

If you are installing option package **ID** or **DX**, you may use either the key slot on the front of the ECU or a key slot in an optional remote server access box to control access to pouring. The remote server access box is usually installed on the front of the bar so servers can have access to the system without having to walk around the bar.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX

#### ■ To install a remote server access box:

- 1. Mount the remote server access box underneath the bar with the 4 wood screws provided. Select a convenient location within 6 feet of the ECU.
- 2. Attach the cable from the remote server access box to the back of the ECU using the 9-pin J5B port. Tighten the connecting screws.

#### Note

□ If you are installing option package **ID** as an upgrade to an existing **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system, you need to install an option board and change the EPROM in the ECU. See *Install an Option Board* and *Change the EPROM* in the *Maintenance and Upgrading* section.





Connect the remote server access box cable to the J5B port on the back of the ECU

## **Connect an External Solenoid Output**

Although Berg does not supply or even recommend a manufacturer for a solenoid valve, there may be solenoid valves installed in the system's beverage lines. If you have option package **ID** or **DX**, these valves can be used to prevent the pouring of drinks from the lines without a valid server key. The valves may be installed in lines with or without a flow meter. When used with flow meters, the valves can prevent "unassigned sales" on system reports.

#### 

**How it works** When a valid server key is inserted in the ECU's key slot, a signal from the ECU travels through a relay to the solenoid value and opens the value. The value stays open as long as the server key is in the key slot. If there is a flow meter in the line, it monitors the quantity dispensed and the sales are assigned to the server whose key is in the key slot. Removing the server key sends a signal to close the solenoid value and any pouring from the line is prevented.

#### ■ To connect an external solenoid output:

- 1. Install the solenoid valve(s) in the beverage line(s) using the manufacturer's instructions if they are not already installed.
- 2. Connect the solenoid valve(s) to a relay.

(Since many solenoid valves operate on voltages other than 12 VDC, such as 24 VDC or 110 VAC, a relay is needed to isolate the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** from those higher voltages. The ECU provides 12 VDC to the input side of the relay and the output side of the relay switches to the higher voltage needed to open the solenoid valves. Berg recommends that you always use a relay to protect the ECU even if you're using a 12 VDC solenoid valve.)



3. Connect the cable from the relay to the back of the ECU \_\_\_\_\_using the 3-pin J4B port. Tighten the connecting screws.

You may use this port to control almost any number of solenoid valves installed in the system.

#### Note

Berg does not provide or even recommend a manufacturer for the solenoid valve or relay. This option is offered for customers that already have a beverage system with an inline solenoid.



## Install a Switchbox with a Serial Printer or Computer Interface

If you have more than one **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU and want to interface those ECUs to one serial printer or computer, you can create a switchbox "network". The switchbox lets you control which ECU's output goes to the printer or computer. If you have option package **744-Basic** or **744-CR**, you won't be able to interface to a printer, but you may want to interface to a computer to use the **All-Bottle Manager** software to load portion sizes or PLUs.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX

#### To install a switchbox:

- 1. Choose a switchbox that has RJ-11/RJ-12 connections. Make sure you have enough communication cable to run between the ECUs and the switchbox.
- 2. Connect each ECU to the inputs of the switchbox using the communication cable and RJ-12 plug connectors. Use the J6A port on the back of the ECUs.
- 3. Attach the RS-232 to RS 485 converter (Berg PN 8009344) to a 25-pin serial port on the computer or the printer.
- 4. Connect the output communication cable from the switchbox to the end of the converter with an RJ-12 plug connector.
- 5. Connect the transformer to the side of the converter and plug the transformer into a power source.

#### Notes

□ A serial printer (RS-232C interface) must be used if you install a switchbox. Since the most common printers on the market today use the Centronics parallel interface, a special printer may need to be ordered to implement the network as described above. A serial printer package (Berg PN 8005546) is available from Berg which includes an Epson 300 printer, 3 ft cable and the RS-232 to RS-485 converter.



#### ■ To use a switchbox:

- 1. Select an ECU with the switch on the switchbox.
- 2. If the switchbox is connected to a printer, generate reports for the selected ECU as described in the *Reports* section. OR

If the switchbox is connected to a computer, use the **All-Bottle Manager** software to access data from the selected ECU as described in the *All-Bottle Manager Software* section.

## **Test the System**

Now that you've installed an entire **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system, it's time to plug in the power and make sure everything works. Do not plug in the power supply until you have completed all wiring tasks.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ☑ AR ☑ FM ☑ ID ☑ DX
∎ sy	To test a newly installed All-Bottle 744 or 1544 stem:
1.	Make sure you've installed each component and made all cable connections.
2.	Plug in the power cord coming from the power supply.
3.	Pour a drink with a coded pourer using the default portion sizes if you have not pre-programmed the ECU. If you have programmed the ECU, check to see that the portion size is correct.
4.	If you have an electronic cash register connected to the ECU, check to see that the correct PLU (and price) are rung up on the register.
5.	Pour a drink using flow meters (if you've installed them) and record the volume of drink poured.
6.	Pour a drink with a coded pourer using the remote server access box (if you've installed one).
7.	Print a detailed report using the printer interface or the <b>Manager</b> software. Check the report to see that the All-Bottle portions poured in steps 3 and 6 above were recorded correctly. If flow meters are installed, check to see that the volume of the portion poured in step 5 was recorded correctly.
8.	If you encounter a problem with any of these steps refer to the <i>Troubleshooting</i> section.

# ECU Setup

Most of the ECU setup tasks described in this section can be performed prior to installation. As soon as you find out your customer's formatting preferences you can begin programming the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU.

Country Setup	
Volume Units	
Price Format	
Decimal Character	
Time Format	
Date Format	
Return to Factory Setup	
Cumulative Sales Password	
Diagnostic Messages	
Default Messages	
Set Time and Date	
Serial Port Setup	
Set Station Number	
Linefeeds to Printer	
Enable OFF Signal	

## **Country Setup**

It's in the Country Setup portion of the Dealer Menu that you define the date, time, price, and measurement formats **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** uses to record data. The ECU comes with default values you can use without making any changes to Country Setup.

Available in Option Package	s): 🗹 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
Country Setup	Decimal Character	:: . (period)				
Default values	Price Format:	999.99				
	Volume Units:	OZ				
	Time Format:	02:45:00 F	PM (12 h	our)		
	Date Format:	01/31/97				
	If you want to chan task headings that	nge any of the follow.	ese defau	lt values	see the s	pecific

## **Volume Units**

You can measure the drinks poured with an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system in various units. If your customer prefers metric measurements you can easily enter this format using the Volume Units feature.

Available in Option Package(s): 1744-Basic 1744-CR AR AR IN FM ID ID X



### Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Country Setup

### Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Set Volume Units

Useî↓	and	ENTER	Ļ	
oz				

#### ■ To change the volume units:

1. Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)

Use1↓ and ENTER ↓
Dealer Menu

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Country Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set Volume Units** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to select ounces (oz), milliliters (ml), cubic centimeters (cc), centiliters (cl) or liters (L) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Volume Units** option.

#### Note

□ If you have sales data stored in the ECU when you change the volume units, the reports will not reflect the actual sales. Before changing volume units run a Z report on the ECU to clear sales data.

## **Price Format**

Different countries use the decimal character in different positions to denote prices. You can change the placement of the decimal character in your All-Bottle 744 or 1544 system using the Price Format feature.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic □ 744-CR ☑ AR ☑ FM ☑ ID ☑ DX
•	To change the price format:
1.	Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)
	Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Dealer Menu
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Country Setup	Use the up and down arrow keys to display the <b>Country Setup</b> option and press ENTER.
Useî↓ and ENTER .J 3.	Use the up and down arrow keys to display the <b>Set</b> <b>Price Format</b> option and press ENTER.
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ 999.99	Use the up arrow key to move the decimal character to the right or the down arrow key to move the decimal character to the left and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Price Format** option.

11

## **Decimal Character**

Some countries use a period (.) to denote a decimal character. Others use a comma (,) for this purpose. You can enter whichever character your customer prefers and **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** prints system reports with the chosen character.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



- To change the decimal character:
- 1. Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓	
Dealer Menu	

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Country Setup

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓
Set Decimal Char.

Useî↓ a	and	ENTER	Ļ
period			

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Country Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set Decimal Char.** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the down arrow to select **comma** (,) or the up arrow to select **period** (.) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Decimal Char.** option.

## **Time Format**

**All-Bottle 744** or **1544** can print the time on system reports using 24 hour (military) or 12 hour (standard AM/PM) notation. The default format is 12 hour notation, but you can easily change the format.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic	□ 744-CR	⊠ AR	☑ FM	⊡ID	⊠ DX
1.	To change the Access the De select the Deal	he time for aler Menu. (l ler Menu opt Useî↓ and Dealer Me	mat: Insert you ion and p ENTER ENTER	ur key, pr press ENT د ع	ess ENT ER.)	ER,
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Country Setup	Use the up and <b>Setup</b> optic	l down arrow on and press	v keys to ENTER.	display th	ne <b>Cour</b>	ntry
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Set Time Format	Use the up and <b>Format</b> op	l down arrow tion and pres	v keys to s ENTEF	display th R.	ne <b>Set</b>	Time
Useî↓ and ENTER J 12 hour	Use the down arrow key to s	arrow key to elect 12 hour	select 24	hour not and pres	ation or s ENTE	the up R.

The display returns to the **Set Time Format** option.

## **Date Format**

Your customer can choose to display the date on system reports using a month/day/year or day.month.year notation. The default format is month/day/year.

Available in Option Package(s): 
744-Basic 
744-CR 
AR 
FM 
ID 
DX



#### To change the date format:

1. Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)

Ugot and ENTER
Dealer Menu

Useî↓	and	ENTER	L,
Count	ry S	etup	

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Country Setup** option and press ENTER.
- Useî↓ and ENTER ⊣ Set Date Format

Useî↓ MM (DD)	and	ENTER	4
	ΤI		

- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set Date Format** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the down arrow key to select DD.MM.YY (day.month.year) notation or the up arrow to select MM/DD/ YY (month/day/year) notation and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Date Format** option.

## **Return to Factory Setup**

If you need to quickly erase all the values you've entered at the ECU use Return to Factory Setup. This feature restores default values to price, portion, PLU and flow meter tables, server ID names, calibration entries and other options entered at the ECU. It also clears accumulated sales data. See the accompanying chart for a complete listing of default values that are reset if you use Return to Factory Setup.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



Useî	'↓ a	nd	ENTER	L.
Rtn	to	fa	ctory	setup

```
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓
Are you sure ? : N
```

- To return to factory setup:
- 1. Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)

IIGOAL and ENTER
Dealer Menu
Deater Menu

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Rtn to factory setup** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the down arrow to select **Y** (to return to factory setup) or the up arrow to select **N** (to keep the current setup) and press ENTER.

If you select  $\mathbf{Y}$  the display informs you when the return to factory setup values is complete.



The display returns to the **Rtn to factory setup** option.

#### Notes

- □ Since this feature clears sales data, be sure to run a Z report first if you have accumulated sales.
- □ If you have **All-Bottle Manager**, save a file at the computer with current ECU setup data before doing a Return to Factory Setup.

Dealer and Manager Menu Options Affected by Return to Factory Setup	Default Values After Return to Factory Setup			r tup
Country Setup	1			
Set Price Format	oz			
Set Price Format	999.99			
Set Decimal Char.	period			
Set Time Format	12 hour (AM	M/PM)		
Set Date Format	MM/DD/YY			
Cum Sales Password	(none)			
Diagnostic Messages	N			
Default Messages	N			
Disable Unit	N			
View Reports				
Summary Z	cleared, Z	number 0		
Detailed Z	cleared, Z	number 0		
Summary X	cleared			
Detailed X	cleared			
All Server Summary Z	cleared, Z	number 0		
All Server Summary X	cleared			
Summary Z by Server	cleared, Z number 0			
Summary X by Server	cleared			
Last Z	cleared			
Hourly Sales	cleared			
Price Level Change	cleared			
Key Assignment	blank excep	t Dealer		
Price Level Change (by manager only)	Y			
Reset After Pour	Y			
Server Menu Active	Y			
Restart Pour Delay	0 seconds			
Serial Port Setup				
Set Baud Rate	19200			
Set Word Length	8-bits			
Set Parity	No Parity			
Set Stop Bits	1 Stop Bit			
Set Station Number	0			
All- Bottle Setup	(Small)	(Regular)	(Large)	(Special)
Set Portion	1.00	1.25	1.50	2.00
Set Price	1.00	1.25	1.50	2.00
Set PLU	all set to	0	1	
Flow Meter Setup				
Meter Count	3614			
Set Price/Unit (levels A through D)	all set to	1.00		
Printer Config				
Linefeeds to Printer	Y			
Enable OFF signal	Y Y			
Calibrate	1-			
Code 1 (through 7) or (through 15)	670 (if EPP EPROM lower	ROM 1.09 or than 1.09)	higher) 100	0 (if

## **Cumulative Sales Password**

The **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU keeps a running total of all sales separate from any other sales totals. These cumulative sales are not cleared when you run Z reports. They can only be cleared by a manager. For additional security, a unique password can be defined at the ECU that must be entered to clear cumulative sales. If the manager doesn't want to password protect deletion of cumulative sales, you don't need to perform this task.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX



#### To enter a cumulative sales password:

1. Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)

Use $\uparrow\downarrow$ and ENTER .	L
Dealer Menu	

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Cum Sales Password

Use←1↓→and ENTER	Ļ
Password _	

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Cum Sales Password** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Key in the password and press ENTER.

Use the left and right arrow keys to move the cursor through the five password fields.

Use the up and down arrow keys to select characters from the following list: ! " # \$ % & ' () \* +, -. / 0-9 : ; <= > ? @ A-Z [ (yen character) ] ^ ` a-z { | }right arrow and space in that order.

The display returns to the **Cum Sales Password** option.

## **Diagnostic Messages**

Enabling Diagnostic Messages turns on an ECU internal diagnostic feature used by Berg service engineers. This feature sends diagnostic information through the diagnostic port to test pouring capabilities or access key insertion. For normal operations, you should disable Diagnostic Messages.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🖾 744-CR 🖾 AR 🗹 FM 🖾 ID 🖾 DX



Useî↓	and	ENTER	Ļ
Diagn	osti	c Mess	ages

```
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓
Diagnostics ? : N
```

- To enable or disable diagnostic messages:
- 1. Access the Dealer Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Dealer Menu option and press ENTER.)

Dealer Menu

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Diagnostic Messages** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up arrow to select **N** (to disable diagnostics) or the down arrow to select **Y** (to enable diagnostics) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Diagnostic Messages** option.

## **Default Messages**

Default Messages: Y

If you need to customize the text in the ECU display window for a non-English language, you can disable the default messages that come with the ECU and define your own messages. Check with The Berg Company to use this option. Otherwise, this option should always be enabled.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	☑ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
	To enable d	efault mess	sages:			
1.	Access the Dea	aler Menu. (l ler Menu opt Useî↓ and Dealer Me	Insert yo ion and p ENTER ENU	ur key, pr press ENT	ess ENT TER.)	TER,
Use <sup>1</sup> and ENTER J Default Messages	Use the up and <b>Messages</b>	d down arrow option and p	v keys to press EN'	display tł FER.	ne <b>Def</b> a	ault
Use <sup>↑↓</sup> and ENTER J 3.	Use the up arr	ow key to sel	ect N (to	disable d	lefault	blo

messages), or the down arrow key to select  $\mathbf{Y}$  (to enable default messages) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Default Messages** option.

## Set Time and Date

You want to be sure your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** is programmed to reflect the current time and date. This information appears at the top of every report generated by the system. Correcting the system time and date is easily accomplished at the ECU.

Available in Option Package(s): 
744-Basic 
744-CR 
AR 
FM 
ID 
DX



Useî Set	↓ and Time	ENT	'ER ↓ Date	

Useî↓	and	ENTER	Ļ
Date	02/1	6/96	

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓	
Time 03:07:12	



■ To set the All-Bottle 744 or 1544 system time and date:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set Time and Date** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Key in the correct date and press ENTER.

Use the up and down arrow keys to select the numbers and the left and right arrow keys to move the cursor through the date fields.

4. Key in the correct time and press ENTER.

Use the up and down arrow keys to select the numbers and the left and right arrow keys to move the cursor through the time fields (HH/MM/SS) and press ENTER.

If the time format is 12 hour, use the up and down arrow keys to move the numbers in the hour fields through 12 to switch from AM to PM.

The display returns to the **Set Time and Date** option.

#### Notes

- □ To set time and date formats, see the *ECU Setup* section.
- □ If you are in 12 hour mode, note that AM/PM does not get highlighted with the cursor.

## **Serial Port Setup**

If you want to set up your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** to communicate with an IBM-compatible computer or with a serial printer you need to set the communication variables of your ECU to match those of your PC or printer. For more information about these settings, consult your printer or computer manual.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



#### To change serial port settings:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Use1↓ and ENTER ↓	
Manager Menu	

#### Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Serial Port Setup

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓
Set Baud Rate

Useî↓	and	ENTER	LL
19200			

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Serial Port Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the serial port setting you want to change and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the new setting and press ENTER.

#### Note

□ The ECU comes with the following serial port default settings:

Baud Rate: 19200

Word Length: 8-bits

Parity: No parity

Stop Bits: 1 Stop Bit

## **Set Station Number**

A station number is a unique number you assign to an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU to identify reports from that ECU. All reports show this station number at the top.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



#### To set a station number:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the Set Station Number option and press ENTER.

Useî↓ and	ENTER J
Number	000

3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select a number. Use the left and right arrow keys to move the cursor through the number fields. (The valid range of station numbers is 000-255.)

The display returns to the **Set Station Number** option.

## **Linefeeds to Printer**

If you are sending reports to a printer, unwanted linefeeds may be a problem. Unwanted linefeeds insert extra blank lines between the printed lines of the report. If you cannot disable the automatic linefeeds at the printer, use this feature to disable them at the ECU.



The display returns to the **Linefeeds to Printer** option.

## **Enable OFF Signal**

The signal referred to in this menu option is the "online" signal the ECU checks for before sending a report to a printer. If the ECU checks and doesn't find an online parallel printer, it displays an error message. If you are using a parallel printer, that's helpful. If you are using a serial printer, it doesn't matter that the ECU detected an "OFF" (or absence of online) signal for a parallel printer; your report goes to the serial printer regardless of the error message. You can choose to have the ECU ignore the OFF signal and you'll no longer see error messages.



## Access Keys

Access keys provide convenient and secure access to the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU menus. Each **Dealer** or **Manager** key is programmed with a two character access code that determines which menu(s) can be used. These keys can also be programmed with a user name for identification purposes. If you have option package **ID** or **DX**, **Server** access keys offer complete security and accountability for all pouring operations. Each server is assigned a key programmed to permit pouring and access to a Server Menu. **Server** keys must be programmed with unique names that identify the user at the time of pouring. These names must also be entered in the Key Assignment List or pouring access will be denied.

Read an Access Key	4-2
Read a Remote Server Access Key	4-3
Make a Manager Key	4-4
Make a Server Key	4-5
Key Assignment List	4-6

## **Read an Access Key**

You can determine the assignment of your access keys with this feature in the Dealer Menu or the Manager Menu.



#### Note

□ DL, MG and WT are codes designating access keys as dealer (DL), manager (MG), or server/waiter (WT) keys.

## Read a Remote Server Access Key

You can determine the name assigned to a server key using this feature.



#### To read a remote server access key:

1. Access the Dealer or Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select a Menu option and press ENTER.)





2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Access Keys** option and press ENTER.



3. Insert an access key in the remote server access box.

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Read Second Key

Use	ENTER J
WT	Don

4. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Read Second Key** option and press ENTER.

The two character code (DL, MG, WT) and name assigned to the access key in the remote server access box appears in the display window.

- 5. If you have more than one key to read, remove the key in the box and insert the next one.
- 6. Press ENTER to return to the **Read Second Key** option.

#### Note

□ If there is no access key in the remote server access box, the two character code and name assigned to the last key inserted in the box appears in the display window.

## Make a Manager Key

You can turn an access key (new or previously programmed) into a manager key using this feature in the Dealer Menu at the ECU. If the customer does not have a remote server access box, you need to connect one to perform this task.



characters from the following list: ! " # % & () \* +, -./ 0-9:;  $< = > ? @ A-Z [ (yen character) ] ^ ` a-z { | }right arrow and space in that order.$ 

#### Note

□ After making a manager key, you must pull it from the box and reinsert it to read it.

## Make a Server Key

Once you have a remote server access box installed with your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544**, you can make an access key with a unique identifying code for each server. At any time you can change the name identifying the server key by simply reinserting the key and repeating the procedure. For the server key to be accepted at the ECU, the name assigned to the key must also be entered on the key assignment list. See *Key Assignment List* in this section.



#### Note

- After making a server key, you must pull it from the box and reinsert it to read it.
- □ You can also make a server key at the time you add a server's name to the key assignment list. See *Key Assignment List* in this section.

## **Key Assignment List**

If you have server ID, you must enter a valid server name at the ECU for each server key you want to activate. For a server to be allowed to pour, the name on the server key must match a name in the key assignment list stored in the ECU. When you add a server name to the key assignment list, you can also choose to make a server key in that name at the same time.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX





Useî↓	and	ENTER	L.
01			

	ENTER
ID: Don	

#### To list servers in the Key Assignment list:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Key Assignment** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select one of the numbers (up to 15) that make up the list of server key assignments and press ENTER.

The order in which servers appear in the list is not significant.

4. Use the up and down arrow keys to enter the identifying name assigned to the key and press ENTER.

Use the left and right arrow keys to move the cursor through the ID fields (up to 16 spaces).

Use the up and down arrow keys to select the characters from the following list: ! " # \$ % & ' () \* +, -. / 0-9 :; <=>? @ A-Z [ (yen character) ] ^\_` a-z { | }right arrow and space in that order. The key assignment list is case sensitive.

The display prompts you to make a server key for the name you just added to the list.





5. If you want to make a server key, insert an access key in the remote server access box.

TT at a th						
Uselt	and	E	N.T	ER	_ <b>ل</b> م	
Make	Key	?	:	Y		
	-					

6. Use the down arrow to select  $\mathbf{Y}$  (to make a server key) or the up arrow to select  $\mathbf{N}$  (not to make a server key) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the name you added to the key assignment list.

Use←î↓→and ENTER ↓ ID: Don
-------------------------------



- 7. If you made a server key, remove it from the remote server access box.
- 8. Repeat steps 3 through 7 for each server in the key assignment list.
## Pouring Control

You can enable or disable several features of your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU. These features include such options as resetting the portion size after a pour and determining the time delay between identical pours.

Disable Unit	. 5-2
Enable Computer Communication	. 5-3
Enable Price Level Change	. 5-4
Reset After Pour	. 5-5
Server Menu Active	. 5-6
Restart Pour Delay	. 5-7

## **Disable Unit**

To maintain system security, use this feature to prevent the pouring of any All-Bottle drinks. If you have flow meters, this feature does not prevent their use. However, while the ECU is disabled it continues to track any flow meter activity.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



Use↑↓ and ENTER . Disable Unit	1
Useî↓ and ENTER .	J

Disable Unit ? : N

- To disable a unit:
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Disable Unit** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the down arrow to select **Y** (to disable the unit)) or the up arrow to select **N** (to keep the unit enabled) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Disable Unit** option.

If you select **Y**, as soon as you remove the Manager Key the display confirms the unit is disabled.



## **Enable Computer Communication**

This feature enables communication between an **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU and a computer using the **All-Bottle Manager** software. You must enable this feature at the ECU to use the software.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🖾 DX



Useî↓	and	ENTER	Ļ
Commu	nica	tions	

Useî↓	and	ENTER	L,	
Comm	Optic	on Act	ive	N

- **To enable computer communication:**
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Communications** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the down arrow to select **Y** (to enable communication) or the up arrow to select **N** (to disable communication) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Communications** option.

#### Notes

- □ If you select **Y**, no further Manager Menu or Server Menu options appear at the ECU to prevent internal conflicts while communicating with the computer.
- Pouring operations are not affected by enabling computer communication.

## **Enable Price Level Change**

If you want to let any bartender or server change the price level at the ECU you must enable this feature. Otherwise the price level can only be changed with a manager key in the ECU's key slot.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



Useî↓ and ENTER ↓

Use1↓ and ENTER ↓

Manager Only ? : Y

Price Level Change

#### ■ To enable price level change:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓
Manager Menu

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Price Level Change** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the down arrow to select **Y** (to enable price level change only by a manager) or the up arrow to select **N** (to enable price level change by any server) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Price Level Change** option.

## **Reset After Pour**

If you enable the Reset After Pour feature, the portion size selected at the ECU resets to Regular after every pour. If you do not enable this feature, portion size is determined by the currently selected size until you choose a different one.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



#### ■ To enable reset after pour:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Reset After Pour
Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Reset ? : N

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Reset After Pour** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the down arrow to select **Y** (to reset portion size to Regular after every pour) or the up arrow to select **N** (to keep the current portion size after every pour) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Reset After Pour** option.

## **Server Menu Active**

You can specify whether or not to give servers access to the Server Menu at the ECU. If the Server Menu is disabled, servers will not be able to view or print the X report which details their sales activities.

Available in Option Package(s): 
744-Basic 
744-CR 
AR 
FM 
ID 
DX





Useî↓ and ENTER 」 Server Menu Active Y

- To enable or disable access to the Server Menu:
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

IIGOT and ENTER (
Manager Menu

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Server Menu Active** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the down arrow to select **Y** (to enable access to the Server Menu) or the up arrow to select **N** (to disable access to the Server Menu) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Server Menu Active** option.

#### Note

 Even if Server Menu Active is set to Y, you will not be able to access the Server Menu if Comm Option Active (in the Manager Menu) is also set to Y.

## **Restart Pour Delay**

You can pour repeated drinks with an All-Bottle pourer without tipping the bottle back. Restart Pour Delay specifies the number of seconds the All-Bottle pourer pauses between the end of one pour and the start of another identical one.

Available in Option Package(s): 1744-Basic 1744-CR 2 AR 17 FM 10 DX



Use1↓ and ENTER ↓

Use1↓ and ENTER ↓

0

Seconds

Restart Pour Delay

- To set restart pour delay:
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Restart Pour Delay** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the number of seconds (0 through 9) you wish the pourer to delay between repeated drinks and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Restart Pour Delay** option.

#### Note

□ If you select 0 seconds, no pours will repeat.

## Calibration, Prices, Portions and PLUs

Each newly installed **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** pourer needs to be checked and adjusted for pouring accuracy. This process is called calibration. In addition, portion sizes and, depending on your option package, prices and PLUs must be entered at the ECU for each coded pourer. If your system includes flow meters, you must also enter a meter count and price per unit for each flow meter to ensure pouring accuracy.

Calibrate Coded Pourers	
Define Portion Sizes	6-4
Define Prices	6-5
Define PLUs	6-6
Define Flow Meter Prices per Unit	6-7
Set Flow Meter Counts	6-8
Clear All-Bottle Prices, Portions and PLUs	6-10
Clear Flow Meter Prices	6-11
Clear All Prices, Portions and PLUs	
Portion Change Lockout	6-13

## **Calibrate Coded Pourers**

You want to be sure the amount of beverage actually poured with an All-Bottle pourer matches the amount recorded for the pour at the ECU. Calibration (checking the accuracy of the measuring process and making any necessary adjustments) needs to be performed for each of the seven or fifteen coded pourers.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🖾 FM 🖾 ID 🖾 DX



#### Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Calibrate



Use î↓ Codo 1	and EN	TER J
Code I	1000	1000



#### To calibrate a coded pourer:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓	
Manager Menu	

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Calibrate** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the number of the coded pourer you want to calibrate and press ENTER.

You are now in calibration mode for the selected pourer. The first number listed is the current calibration number for the pourer (factory default is 670 for EPROM ver. 1.09 or higher, 1000 for EPROM ver. lower than 1.09). The second number is an entry field for you to enter a new calibration number.

- 4. Pour a drink with the selected pourer into a graduated cylinder.
- 5. Carefully measure the volume of drink poured. If the pourer is calibrated accurately, the volume poured should be 1 ounce or 30 milliliters.

If you are not satisfied with the accuracy of the pour (the volume is not close enough to 1 ounce or 30 milliliters), proceed with step 6.

OR

If you are satisfied with the accuracy of the pour and the current calibration number, proceed with step 9.

6. Calculate a new calibration number.

Divide 1 ounce or 30 milliliters (whichever is your target volume) by the amount of your test pour.

Example: 1 ounce divided by .81 ounce = 1.23

Multiply your answer by the current calibration number (the first of the two numbers on the display).

*Example:* 1.23 X 1000 = 1230

This is your new calibration number.

7. Key in the new calibration number using the up and down arrow keys to select the numbers and the left and right arrow keys to move through the number fields and press ENTER.

The first number on the display changes to match the second number.

- 8. Repeat steps 4-7 (pouring, measuring, recalculating) until you are satisfied with the accuracy of the selected pourer.
- 9. Press ENTER to save the calibration number that gave you the most accuracy.

The display returns to the **Code** option.

10. Repeat steps 3-9 for each coded pourer you want to calibrate.

#### Notes

- All other pourers are temporarily disabled once you are in calibration mode for a selected pourer.
- □ The calibration numbers for all pourers are listed at the end of the Configuration report.
- The default calibration number for high flow pourers is 670. If you use high flow pourers with EPROM ver. lower than 1.09, the default calibration number of 1000 (on the ECU display) is too high. Enter 670 as a calibration number before pouring to get a more accurate pour.
- The default calibration number for standard flow pourers is 1000. If you use standard flow pourers with EPROM ver.
   1.09 or higher, the default calibration number of 670 (on the ECU display) is too low. Enter 1000 as a calibration number before pouring to get a more accurate pour.

Use î↓	and EN	rer 🚽
Code 1	1000	1230

Use î↓	and ENTER J
Code 1	1230 1230

Useî↓ and	ENTER	L.
Code 1		

## **Define Portion Sizes**

You can preset four portion sizes for each price level of each coded pourer in your All-Bottle 744 or 1544 system. Portion sizes can be as small as 1/8 ounce and as large as 10 ounces.

#### Available in Option Package(s): ☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ☑ AR ⊠ FM ⊠ ID **☑** DX



#### To define portion sizes:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Usel and ENTER
Manager Menu

- Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ All-Bottle Setup



Useî↓ and ENTER 」 Set Portion

Use←↑↓ →and ENTER ↓ Portion 006.00

- 2. On the front panel of the ECU select a price level (A, B, C or D) and a size (S, R, L or SP).
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **All**-Bottle Setup option and press ENTER.
- Use the up and down arrow keys to select the pourer code for 4. which you are defining portion sizes and press ENTER.
- 5. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the Set **Portion** option and press ENTER.
- 6. Key in the portion size using the up and down arrow keys (to select the numbers) and the left and right arrow keys (to move through the number fields) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Portion** option.

7. Select a new size and/or price level on the front panel of the ECU and repeat steps 5 and 6 for each portion size.

#### Note

□ If you try to enter a portion size greater than 10 ounces (295.7 ml), or greater than 0 but less than 1/8 ounce (3.7 ml), the ECU does not accept the entry when you press the ENTER key. Select a new amount.

## **Define Prices**

You can preset four price levels for each coded pourer in your All-Bottle 744 or 1544 system.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX



#### To define prices:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. On the front panel of the ECU select a price level (A, B, C or D) and a size (S, R, L or SP).
- Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ All-Bottle Setup

Useî↓ and	ENTER	Ъ
Code 1		

Useî↓ and ENTER .」 Set Price

Use←↑↓ →and	i enter 🚽
Price 002.2	5

- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **All-Bottle Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the pourer code for which you are defining prices and press ENTER.
- 5. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set Price** option and press ENTER.
- 6. Key in the price using the up and down arrow keys (to select the numbers) and the left and right arrow keys (to move through the number fields) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Price** option.

7. Select a new size and/or price level on the front panel of the ECU and repeat steps 5 and 6 for each price you want to define.

## **Define PLUs**

If you are using the ECR interface with your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544**, you must enter sales information at the ECU that the cash register needs to ring up each drink. Determine the correct PLU (price look up) for each size of drink poured at each price level by each coded pourer. These PLUs are already defined at the cash register; you just need to enter them at the ECU.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX





#### To define PLUs:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Use1↓ and ENTER ↓
Manager Menu

2. On the front panel of the ECU select a price level (A, B, C or D) and a size (S, R, L or SP).









- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **All-Bottle Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the pourer code for which you are defining PLUs and press ENTER.
- 5. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set PLU** option and press ENTER.
- 6. Key in the PLU using the up and down arrow keys (to select the numbers) and the left and right arrow keys (to move through the number fields) and press ENTER. The valid range of PLUs is 0 to 9999.

The display returns to the **Set PLU** option.

 Select a new size and/or price level on the front panel of the ECU and repeat steps 5 and 6 for each PLU you want to define.

## **Define Flow Meter Price per Unit**

If you are using flow meters, the sales for each flow meter appear on designated reports. You need to enter the price per unit of volume for each price level of each flow meter for this sales data to be calculated. The price per unit is multiplied by the total units poured by the flow meter to determine the total sales.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX



Useî↓	and	ENTER 🜙	
Flow	Meter	Setup	

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Flow Meter #1







- To define flow meter prices per unit:
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Flow Meter Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the flow meter you want to enter a price per unit for and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Set Price/Unit** option.
- 5. Use the down arrow key to select the price level (Lvl A, B, C or D) for which you're defining a price per unit and press ENTER.
- 6. Key in the price per unit using the up and down arrow keys (to select the numbers) and the left and right arrow keys (to move through the number fields) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Set Price/Unit** option.

- 7. Repeat steps 5 and 6 for each price level of a selected flow meter.
- 8. Use the up arrow to select the **Exit This Menu** option and press ENTER. Repeat steps 3-7 for each additional flow meter.

#### Note

□ The volume unit (oz, ml, cc, cl or L) you are defining a price for is the one currently selected at the ECU.

## **Set Flow Meter Counts**

If you are using flow meters with your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544**, you must check the accuracy of their measurements and adjust the flow meter counts if necessary. (The flow meter count is the number of counts from the flow meter per ounce of beverage multiplied by 100.) It's the number you recorded and saved at the time of flow meter installation.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX



Use1↓ and ENTER ↓

Flow Meter Setup

Flow Meter #1

Meter Count

Use ↑↓ and ENTER ↓

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓

#### To set flow meter counts:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Useî↓	and	ENTH	ER ,J
Manag	er M	enu	

- 2. Run a Z report to clear all sales. See the *Reports* section.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Flow Meter Setup** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the number of the flow meter for which you'll enter a meter count and press ENTER.
- 5. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Meter Count** option and press ENTER.
- 6. Key in the meter count using the up and down arrow keys (to select the numbers) and the left and right arrow keys (to move through the number fields) and press ENTER.

Use the number you recorded from the flow meter at the time of installation or a default meter count of 3614.

The display returns to the **Meter Count** option.

- 7. Pour a drink (using the selected flow meter) of approximately 16 ounces and measure the exact amount poured. Be as accurate as possible.
- 8. Run a sales report (Detailed X or Z is probably best) to learn the recorded volume of the test pour.



If you are not satisfied with the accuracy of the pour (the volume you measured is not close enough to the volume recorded on the report), proceed with step 9.

#### OR

If you are satisfied with the accuracy of the pour and the current flow meter count, proceed with step 11.

9. Calculate a new flow meter count to enter.

Divide the amount of the test pour given in the report by the amount you measured.

*Example:* 16.65 *ounces divided by* 17.2 *ounces* = .968

Multiply your answer by the current meter count.

*Example:* .968 *X* 3614 = 3498

This is your new flow meter count.

- 10. Repeat steps 2-10 (clearing sales or choosing a new price level with no sales, entering a meter count, pouring, measuring) until you are satisfied with the accuracy of the selected flow meter.
- 11. Perform all the steps of this task for each flow meter installed in your system.

## **Clear All-Bottle Prices, Portions and PLUs**

When you need to reassign All-Bottle prices, portion sizes and PLUs, use this feature to quickly clear the current settings.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX



#### To clear prices, portions and PLUs:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Clear Price/Por/PLUs
Use <sup>1</sup> and ENTER J

IJgo↑l	and	ENTTE	ъ		
USEIV	anu		ц.	-	
Clear	Sett	ings	?	:	Y

- Use the up and down arrow keys to display the Clear Price/Por/PLUS option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **All-Bottle Data** option and press ENTER.
- Use the down arrow key to select Y (to clear prices, portion sizes and PLUs) or use the up arrow key to select N (to keep the current prices, portion sizes and PLUs) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **All-Bottle Data** option.

#### Note

□ If you have option package **FM** or **DX**, you can choose to clear your All-Bottle settings (price, portion and PLU) or your flow meter settings (price per unit) or both. See *Clear Flow Meter Prices* and *Clear All Prices, Portions and PLUs* in this section.

### **Clear Flow Meter Prices**

If you have flow meters, you can quickly reset the price per unit to zero for all flow meters at the same time.

Available in Option Package(s): □ 744-Basic □ 744-CR ☑ FM **☑ DX** ■ To clear flow meter prices: 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.) Dealer or Manager Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Manager Menu 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Clear** Use1↓ and ENTER J **Price/Por/PLUs** option and press ENTER. Clear Price/Por/PLUs 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **Flow** Use1↓ and ENTER ↓ **Meter Prices** option and press ENTER. Flow Meter Prices 4. Use the down arrow key to select **Y** (to clear flow meter Useî↓ and ENTER 」 prices) or use the up arrow key to select **N** (to keep the Clear Prices? : Y current flow meter prices) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **Flow Meter Prices** option.

#### Note

□ If you have option package **FM** or **DX**, you can choose to clear your All-Bottle settings (price, portion and PLU) or your flow meter settings (price per unit) or both. See *Clear All-Bottle Prices, Portions and PLUs* and *Clear All Prices, Portions and PLUs* in this section.

## **Clear All Prices, Portions and PLUs**

If you have flow meters, you can quickly clear both your All-Bottle settings and your flow meter prices using this feature.

Available in Option Package(s): 
744-Basic 
744-CR 
AR 
FM 
ID 
DX



Useî↓ and ENTER ↓

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓

Clear All Data?

Useî↓

All Price/Por/PLUs

and ENTER J

: Y

Clear Price/Por/PLUs

#### To clear all prices, portions and PLUs:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- Use the up and down arrow keys to display the Clear Price/Por/PLUS option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **All Price/Por/PLUs** option and press ENTER.
- Use the down arrow key to select Y (to clear all price, portion and PLU data) or use the up arrow key to select N (to keep the current data) and press ENTER.

The display returns to the **All Price/Por/PLUs** option.

#### Note

□ If you have option package **FM** or **DX**, you can choose to clear your All-Bottle settings (price, portion and PLU) or your flow meter settings (price per unit) or both. See *Clear All-Bottle Prices, Portions and PLUs* and *Clear Flow Meter Prices* in this section.

6-12 All-Bottle 744/1544 Installation/Service/User Manual

## **Portion Change Lockout**

A jumper can be installed in the ECU to disable any portion size changes once measurements have been inspected. After the jumper is installed, no one can clear or change portion sizes until the jumper is removed.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ ID	⊠ DX
■ 1.	<b>To install a</b> Set up and pro mount the EC	portion cha gram the des U at this time	inge loc ired port	<b>ckout ju</b> ion sizes,	<b>nper:</b> but do 1	ıot
2.	Check the porpourer price cardispensed.	tion sizes by ategory and v	pouring a verify tha	a portion : t the corre	from eac ect amou	ch unt was
3.	Unplug and di	sconnect all	cables to	the back	of the E	CU.
4.	Loosen the tw wrench. Loose with a nut driv	o screws on e en the stand o ver. Open the	each side off nuts of bottom c	of the EC n the bacl of the ECU	CU with c of the l U.	a hex ECU
5.	Locate connec change lockou pins are shorte	etor J9 on the at jumper (Be ed together.	system b rg PN 80	ooard. Ins 07294) so	tall the p that the	ortion e two
6.	Replace the co that secure it a	over on the E0 and the stand	CU and ti off nuts o	ighten the	four sci ck of the	rews e ECU.
7.	Reconnect all	cables and pl	ug in the	ECU.		
8.	Mount the EC	U in the desir	ed locati	on.		
No.	<b>ite</b> See the diagra	m of the ECU	J on the 1	next page		





#### **Caution:**

Electronic components are sensitive to static electricity. If possible, avoid working on the **744** or **1544** ECU while standing on a carpeted surface. Before you open the **744** or **1544** ECU, discharge any static electricity from your body by touching any known grounded metal surface. Also discharge the static repeatedly in like manner while working on the ECU.

# All-Bottle Pouring

Once your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system is installed, you're ready to begin pouring. This section provides help with the following tasks:

Pour a Drink	
Repeat a Pour	7-3
Pour with Server ID	7-4
Pour with Flow Meters and Server ID	7-6

## **Pour a Drink**

You can pour four different portion sizes at four price levels for each of the seven or fifteen All-Bottle 744 or 1544 coded pourers.

Available in Option Package(s): ☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ⊠ AR ☑ FM ⊠ ID **☑ DX** To pour a drink: 1. Verify the correct price level button (A, B, C or D) is lit on the front panel of the ECU. If you need to change the price level, press a new button (A, B, C or D). If you have enabled "manager only" price level change, you must insert a manager key in the ECU key slot to change the price level. (See Enable Price Level Change in the Pouring *Control* section.) 2. Select the desired portion size by pressing the S (small), R (regular), L (large) or SP (special) button on the ECU's front panel. Verify the correct portion size button is lit. 3. Pick up a bottle with a secured pourer and insert the pourer into the activator ring (located in the ring holder). 4. Grasp the finger grip on the activator ring with your index finger and quickly invert the bottle to a near vertical pouring position over a glass. The pour commences. The ECU window displays the code number of the pourer.



5. When the pour ends, tip the bottle back to an upright position. Return the activator ring to the ring holder and the bottle to its prior location.

#### Notes

- □ If the pour does not immediately begin, quickly tip the bottle and activator ring to an upright position and then back to a vertical pouring position over the glass.
- □ If the pour splashes sideways and misses the glass, you may not have tipped the bottle to a vertical position quickly enough.





## **Repeat a Pour**

If you need to pour identical drinks, the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** pourers can be enabled to restart pouring without tipping them back.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX







#### To pour two or more identical drinks:

1. Verify the correct price level button (A, B, C or D) is lit on the front panel of the ECU.

If you need to change the price level, press a new button.

If you have enabled "manager only" price level change, you must insert a manager key to change the price level. (See *Enable Price Level Change* in the *Pouring Control* section.)

- 2. Select the desired portion size by pressing the S (small), R (regular), L (large) or SP (special) button on the ECU's front panel. Verify the correct portion size button is lit.
- 3. Pick up a bottle with a secured pourer and insert the pourer into the activator ring (located in the ring holder).
- 4. Grasp the finger grip on the activator ring with your index finger and quickly invert the bottle to a near vertical pouring position over a glass.

The pour commences. The ECU window displays the code number of the pourer.



- 5. When the pour ends, quickly position the bottle over a new glass (still holding the bottle in a vertical pouring position). You have 1-9 seconds before a new pour commences.
- 6. Repeat step 5 for as many identical drinks as you need.
- 7. Tip the bottle back to an upright position. Return the activator ring to the ring holder and the bottle to its prior location.

#### Note

□ The restart pour delay is determined in the Manager Menu at the ECU. See *Restart Pour Delay* in the *Pouring Control* section.

## Pour with Server ID

If you have installed option package **ID** or **DX**, pouring can not take place without a server key in either the ECU's key slot or the remote server access box. The name assigned to the key in the slot must also match a name in the current Key Assignment list.



number of the pourer in addition to the name assigned to the server key.

Berg 744-ID Code 1 MIKE	
----------------------------	--



- 5. Wait for the pour to end.
- 8. Tip the bottle back to an upright position. Return the activator ring to the ring holder and the bottle to its prior location.
- 9. Remove your server key from the key slot.



#### Note

□ If another key is in the ECU front key slot, the ECU reads "Both Keys" and pouring is disabled.

Berg	744-ID
	Both Keys

## **Pour with Flow Meters and Server ID**

If you have installed option package **DX** with both flow meters and server ID, all pours with the flow meters will be assigned to the server whose key is in either the ECU or the remote server access box at the time of pouring.



□ If there are no keys in either slot at the time of a flow meter pour, the sales are listed on reports as "unassigned flow meter sales". To prevent flow meter pouring without a key in the system, see *Connect an External Solenoid Output* in the *Hardware Installation* section.

## NOILOBS Reports

If you are using Advanced Reporting with your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544**, a variety of reports are available for your use. These reports can be sent directly from the ECU to a printer or computer. If you are also using Server ID, you can generate specific reports on the activity of each server in addition to total sales reports.

Summary Reports (X and Z)	
Detailed Reports (X and Z)	
Last Z Report	
Hourly Sales Report	
Price Level Change Report	
Configuration Report	
Price/Portion Report	
PLU Report	
All Server Summary Reports (X and Z)	
Individual Server Summary Reports (X and Z)	
Individual Server Reports Using the Server Menu	
Clear Cumulative Sales	

## Summary Reports (X and Z)

Summary reports provide the total number of pours and the total sales for each price level. (The sales from all seven or fifteen bottle codes are combined.) If you have flow meters, the total volume and total sales for three flow meters at all four price levels is provided. Summary X and Z reports are exactly the same–but a Z report zeros out your sales totals.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX









←=Exit	→=Print
Useî and↓	to view

- To generate a summary X or Z report
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Useî↓ and ENTER ↓
Managar Manu
Manager Menu

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **View Reports** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the **Summary Z** option or the **Summary X** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Wait for the report to be generated.
- 5. View the report from the display using the up and down arrow keys. Press ENTER to quit viewing.

If you have option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**, use the right arrow key to print the report.

6. Use the left arrow key to exit the report.

#### Notes

- □ If you have option package **Basic** or **CR**, summary reports show the number of portions poured without any sales data.
- □ If you have option package **ID** or **DX**, a Z report clears all individual server sales data. A warning reminds you. (Run a server report first if you want to save the server data.)
- □ The Z number is the number of summary Z or detailed Z reports that have been run. You can detect any unauthorized use of Z reports if you know what this number should be.

Station 1	Date: 04/23/96	Time: 09:49:00 PM
All-Bottle Sales		
Price Level A Price Level B	Portions 52 114	Sales 143.50 329.75
Price Level C	88	266.25
Price Level D	160	387.50
Totals	414	1127.00
Flow Meter Sales		
Price Level A	Volume (oz) 2352.57	Sales 159.00
Price Level B	918.86	81.00
Price Level C	2795.16	166.00
Price Level D	5651.73	332.00
Totals	11718.32	738.00
Report Total Sales		1865.00
Cumulative Sales		3349.75

Berg All-Bottle 744 Summary X Report

## **Detailed Reports (X and Z)**

Detailed X and Z reports provide the total number of pours and the total sales for each of the seven or fifteen price codes at four price levels and four portion sizes. If you have flow meters, the total volume and total sales for three flow meters at all four price levels is provided. Detailed X and Z reports are exactly the same--but a Z report zeros out your sales totals.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX





- To generate a detailed X or Z report
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **View Reports** option and press ENTER.
- Use the up and down arrow keys to select the Detailed
   z option or the Detailed X option and press ENTER.
- 4. Wait for the report to be generated.
- 5. If you have option package **Basic** or **CR**, view the report from the display using the up and down arrow keys. Press ENTER to quit viewing.

If you have option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**, use the right arrow key to print the report.



6. Use the left arrow key to exit the report.

#### Notes

- □ If you have option package **Basic** or **CR**, detailed reports show the number of portions poured without any sales data.
- □ If you have option package **ID** or **DX**, a Z report clears all individual server sales data. A warning reminds you. (Run a server report first if you want to save the server data.)

□ The Z number is the number of summary Z or detailed Z reports that have been run. You can detect any unauthorized use of Z reports if you know what this number should be.

			Berg	All-Bottle	744 Det	ailed Z Re	eport		
Stati	on	1	Date	: 05/16/97		Time: 10:5	57:06 PM		
Z Num	nber	5							
Price	e Lev	rel A							
		Smal	11	Regu	lar	Lar	rge	Spec	ial
Code		Portions	Sales	Portions	Sales	Portions	Sales	Portions	Sa
Code	1	7	12.00	23	46.00	15	33.75	10	30
Code	2	3	7.50	16	36.00	8	20.00	5	15
Code	3	3	8.25	8	24.00	5	15.00	3	9
Code	4	6	12.00	10	22.50	4	10.00	6	18
Code	5	3	7.50	5	10.00	3	6.75	4	12
Code	6	2	5.50	4	10.00	5	15.00	2	6
Code	7	1	2.00	2	4.50	3	7.50	3	9
	Tota	als 2	5 5	64.75 6	8 15	3.00 4	43 10	8.00 33	3
99.00	)								
Total	. Sal	es		Price Lev	rel A	414.75			
Price	e Lev	rel B			_			-	
<b>G</b> = -] =		Sma.		Regu	lar	Lai	rge	Speci	lal
Code	1	Portions	Sales	Portions	Sales	Portions	Sales	Portions	Sa
Code	⊥ 2	8	14.00 15 00	25 16	36.00	15	33.75	13	10
Code	∠ 2	6 F	10 05	0 T 0	24 00	9	22.50	4	12
Code	4	5	12.25	11	27.00	, Д	10 00	5	פ 1 ה
Code	5	4	10 00	6	12 00	4	9 75	4	12
Code	6	2	5.50	4	10.00	6	18.00	5	15
Code	7	3	6.00	3	6.75	5	12.50	6	18

Price

12 00
12.00
9.00
15.00
12.00
15.00
18.00
)
(

Flow	Meter	#1	Totals	ΟZ	132.08	Sales	46.23
Flow	Meter	#2	Totals	oz	257.06	Sales	128.53
Flow	Meter	#3	Totals	oz	489.08	Sales	220.08

Total Sales	Price Level B	886.84
$\rightarrow$		
Report Total Sales	1301.59	
Cumulative Sales	7883.24	
Unaggianad Elaw Matar Sal	0.7	

Unassigned Flow Meter Sales

Price Level A No Activity

Price Level B 
 Flow Meter #1 Totals
 oz
 32.08
 Sales
 11.23

 Flow Meter #3 Totals
 oz
 48.32
 Sales
 21.75

Price Level C No Activity

Price Level D No Activity

Sales 30.00

15.00

9.00

18.00

12.00

6.00 9.00

Sales

## Last Z Report

A last Z report is a backup copy of the most recent Z report generated. This includes summary Z, detailed Z, all server summary Z and individual server summary Z reports. A last Z report does not clear any sales totals because it is not a current Z report.



If you have option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**, view a summary Z or individual server summary Z report from the display using the up and down arrow keys. Use the right arrow key to print the report. Detailed Z and all server summary Z reports are printer only reports.



6. Use the left arrow key to exit the report.

Berg All-Bottle 744 Summary Z Report

Station 1	Date:	05/16/	97	Time:	10:56:11	ΡM
Z Number	5					
All-Bottle Sa	les					
	Por	tions		Sales		
Price Level A		169		414.75		
Price Level B		197		886.84		
Price Level C		0		0.00		
Price Level D		0		0.00		
Totals		366	1	301.59		
Flow Meter Sa	les					
	V	olume	(oz)	Sales		
Price Level A		0.00	( - )	0.00		
Price Level B		80.40		32.98		
Price Level C		0.00		0.00		
Price Level D		0.00		0.00		
Totals		80.40		32.98		
Report Total S	Sales		1	301.59		
Cumulativo Ca	log		7	002 21		
Cullurative Sa.	LES		1	005.24		
Unassigned Flo	ow Meter Sales					
	V	olume	(oz)	Sales		
Price Level A		0.00		0.00		
Price Level B		80.40		32.98		
Price Level C		0.00		0.00		
Price Level D		0.00		0.00		
Totals		80.40		32.98		

## **Hourly Sales Report**

The hourly sales report shows the sales activity for each of the previous forty-eight hours with pouring activity, including the current hour. It provides the total number of All-Bottle pours and a sales total for each hour. If you have flow meters, the hourly sales report provides the total flow meter volume and sales for each hour. The hourly sales data is cleared whenever a summary Z or detailed Z report is generated.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic	□ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>







Creating Report, Please Wait

←=Exit	→=Print
Useî and↓	to view

- To generate an hourly sales report
- 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)

Useî↓ and ENTER	Ļ
Manager Menu	

- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **View Reports** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the **Hourly Sales** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Wait for the report to be generated.
- 5. Use the right arrow key to print the report or the left arrow key to exit the report. The hourly sales report is a printer only report.

Hourly Sales Report Printer-Only Report
--
### Berg All-Bottle 744 Hourly Sales Report

Station	1	D	ate: 11/	12/96	Time:	12:07:	53 AM	
			All-	Bottle		Flow	Meter	Total
Start Time	2	Por	tions	Sales		ΟZ	Sales	Sales
11/11/96 0	8:00:00	PM	43	53.75		0.00	0.00	53.75
11/11/96 0	9:00:00	PM	83	231.88		0.00	0.00	231.88
11/11/96 1	0:00:00	PM	59	115.32		0.00	0.00	115.32
Total Sale	s		126	285.63		0.00	0.00	400.95

# **Price Level Change Report**

The price level change report shows the ten most recent price level changes made at the ECU. The exact time of each price level change is listed along with a record of the old and new price levels.



Price Level Change Printer-Only Report Berg All-Bottle 744 Price Level Change Report

Station	1		Date: 05/01/96	Time: 08:04:26 PM
Date	Time		Old Price Level	New Price Level
04/26/96	04:03:52	PM	Price Level D	Price Level A
04/26/96	06:00:02	PM	Price Level A	Price Level B
04/27/96	05:01:23	PM	Price Level B	Price Level C
04/28/96	01:30:44	PM	Price Level C	Price Level D
04/28/96	04:00:13	PM	Price Level D	Price Level A
04/28/96	06:30:55	PM	Price Level A	Price Level B
04/30/96	09:06:12	PM	Price Level B	Price Level C
05/01/96	11:03:42	AM	Price Level C	Price Level D
05/01/96	05:02:38	PM	Price Level D	Price Level A
05/01/96	07:10:29	PM	Price Level A	Price Level B

# **Configuration Report**

The configuration report provides a list of the current settings for several options available at the ECU. It shows which pouring control options are currently enabled, the Z number, price, time and date formats, serial port settings and the calibration counts for the seven or fifteen coded pourers. If you have option package **ID** or **DX**, it lists the current servers and the number of times each server's sales data has been cleared.

#### Available in Option Package(s): ☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ⊠ AR ⊠ FM ⊠ ID **☑** DX To generate a configuration report 1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.) Dealer or Manager Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ Manager Menu 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **View** Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ **Reports** option and press ENTER. View Reports 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the Useî↓ and ENTER ↓ **Configuration** option and press ENTER. Configuration 4. Wait for the report to be generated. Creating Report, Please Wait 5. Use the up and down arrow keys to view the report from the -=Exit $\rightarrow = Print$ display. Press ENTER to quit viewing. Useî and↓ to view If you have option package AR, FM, ID or DX, use the right arrow key to print the report.

6. Use the left arrow key to exit the report.

### Note

□ It's a good idea to keep a copy of the current configuration report in a safe place.

### Berg All-Bottle 744 Configuration Report

Station 1	Date	: 04/23/96	Time:	09:05:47	РМ
EPROM Version		1.09			
Disable Unit		N			
Price Level Ch	nange Manager	Only Y			
Reset After Po	our	Y			
Server Menu Ac	ctive	Y			
Linefeeds to H	Printer	Y			
Enable OFF Sig	gnal	Y			
Restart Pour I	Delay (second	s) 2			
Current Price	Level	Price Level B			
Z Number		4			
Price Format		999.99			
Decimal Char.		Period			
Volume Units		OZ			
Date Format		MM/DD/YY			
Time Format		12 hour			
Baud Rate		19200			
Parity		No Parity			
Word Length		8-bits			
Stop Bits		1 Stop Bit			
Servers					
Alice	Z Numbe	r 3			
Mike	Z Numbe	r 3	Ron		Z Number
3					
Julie	Z Numbe	r 3			
Calibration Da	ata				
Code 1		959			
Code 2		1028			
Code 3		1107			
Code 4		989			
Code 5		1056			
Code 6		971			
Code 7		1036			

# **Price/Portion Report**

The price/portion report provides a copy of the current portion sizes and price settings for each of the seven or fifteen coded pourers at all four price levels. If you have flow meters, it also provides the flow meter count number and the price per unit of volume.



If you have option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**, use the right arrow key to print the report. The price/portion report is a printer only report.

Price/Portion Report Printer-Only Report

6. Use the left arrow key to exit the report.

### Notes

- □ If you have option package **Basic** or **CR**, the price/portion report lists only portion sizes.
- □ It's a good idea to keep a copy of the current price/portion report in a safe place.

Station 1 Date: 07/18/96 Time: 10:47:50 P	М
---	---

Price Level A

		Sm	all	Regi	ılar	La	rge	Spe	cial
Code		Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price
Code	1	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Code	2	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
Code	3	2.00	1.50	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
Code	4	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Code	5	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
Code	б	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.00	3.50	2.00
Code	7	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.00	3.50	2.00
Flow	Meter	#1 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level A	0.30				
Flow	Meter	#2 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level A	0.25				
Flow	Meter	#3 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level A	1.00				

#### Price Level B

		Sm	all	Regi	ılar	La	rge	Spe	cial
Code		Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price
Code	1	2.00	1.00	4.00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
Code	2	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
Code	3	2.00	1.50	4.00	2.50	6.00	3.50	3.50	2.25
Code	4	2.00	1.00	4.00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
Code	5	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
Code	б	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
Code	7	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
Flow	Meter	#1 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level B	0.40				
Flow	Meter	#2 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level B	0.35				
Flow	Meter	#3 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level B	1.25				

#### Price Level C

		Sr	nall	Reg	gular	L	arge	Sr	pecial
Code		Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price
Code	1	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
Code	2	2.00	1.50	4.00	2.50	6.00	3.50	3.50	2.25
Code	3	2.00	1.75	4.00	2.75	6.00	3.75	3.50	2.50
Code	4	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00

#### Price Level D

		Sm	all	Regu	lar	La	rge	Spe	cial
Code		Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price
Code	1	2.00	0.75	4.00	1.50	6.00	2.50	3.50	1.25
Code	2	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Code	3	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
Code	4	2.00	0.75	4.00	1.50	6.00	2.50	3.50	1.25
Code	5	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Code	6	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Code	7	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Flow	Meter	#1 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level C	0.50				
Flow	Meter	#2 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level C	0.45				
Flow	Meter	#3 Pric	e/oz Price	e Level C	1.50				

# **PLU Report**

If you have entered PLUs at the ECU for communication with a cash register, the PLU report lists the PLU assigned to each price code at every portion size and price level.



If you have option package **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**, use the right arrow key to print the report. The PLU report is a printer only report.



6. Use the left arrow key to exit the report.

### Note

□ It's a good idea to keep a copy of the current PLU report in a safe place.

Berg	All-Bottle	744	PLU	Report
------	------------	-----	-----	--------

Station	1	Date: 01/31/97	Time:	08:23:46 PM	
Price Leve	l A				
	Small	Regular	Large	Special	
Code	PLU	PLU	PLU	PLU	
Code 1	1	2	3	4	
Code 2	5	б	7	8	
Code 3	9	10	11	12	
Code 4	13	14	15	16	
Code 5	17	18	19	20	
Code 6	21	22	23	24	
Code 7	25	26	27	28	
Price Level	lв				
	Small	Regular	Large	Special	
Code	PLU	PLU	PLU	PLU	
Code 1	29	30	31	32	
Code 2	33	34	35	36	
Code 3	37	38	39	40	
Code 4	41	42	43	44	
Code 5	45	46	47	48	
Code 6	49	50	51	52	
Code 7	53	54	55	56	
Price Level	lC				
	Small	Regular	Large	Special	
Code	PLU	PLU	PLU	PLU	
Code 1	57	58	59	60	
Code 2	61	62	63	64	
Code 3	65	66	67	68	
Code 4	69	70	71	72	
Code 5	73	74	75	76	
Code 6	77	78	79	80	
Code 7	81	82	83	84	
Price Level	lD				
	Small	Regular	Large	Special	
Code	PLU	PLU	PLU	PLU	
Code 1	85	86	87	88	
Code 2	89	90	91	92	
Code 3	93	94	95	96	
Code 4	97	98	99	100	
Code 5	101	102	103	104	
Code 6	105	106	107	108	
Code 7	109	110	111	112	

# All Server Summary Reports (X and Z)

If you have option package **ID**, an all server summary Z or X report provides the total All-Bottle pours and sales for each server at each price level. If you have option package **DX**, the all-server report also shows the total flow meter volume and sales and total combined sales for each server at all four price levels. The all-server summary Z report zeros out all server sales data, but leaves all other sales data intact.

### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX



#### Note

- □ The all server summary reports provide sales information for all servers in the current key assignment list.
- □ The Z number is the number of summary Z reports that have been run for that server. You can detect any unauthorized use of Z reports if you know what this number should be. (This Z number is separate from the ECU's Z number.)

### Berg All-Bottle 744 All Server Summary Z Report

Station 1	Date: 02/2	1/97	Time: 07:00	:29 PM	
Servers Alice Mike Julie	Z Number 3 3 Ron 3		3		
Price Level/	All-	Bottle	Flow	w Meter	Total
Server Name	Portions	Sales	ΟZ	Sales	Sales
Price Level A Alice Mike	33 18	87.00 25.75	96.13 169.00	74.00 51.00	161.00 76.75
Price Level B Alice Mike	27 17	74.75 45.38	158.03 144.07	101.00 42.50	175.75 87.88
Price Level C Ron Julie	35 29	90.00 73.50	0.00	0.00 0.00	90.00 73.50
Price Level D No Activity					
Report Totals	159	396.38	567.23	268.50	664.88

# Individual Server Summary Reports (X and Z)

If you have option package **ID**, an individual server summary Z or X report provides the total All-Bottle pours and sales for a selected server at each price level. If you have option package **DX**, the server report also shows the total flow meter volume and sales and total combined sales for that server at all four price levels. The individual server summary Z report zeros out all sales data for that server, but leaves all other sales data intact. You can only generate an individual server summary Z report in the Manager Menu. You can generate a summary X report in either the Manager or Server Menu. To generate a report using the Server Menu see *Individual Server Reports Using the Server Menu* in this section.

### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX











# To generate an individual server summary Z or X report using the Manager menu:

1. Access the Manager Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Manager Menu option and press ENTER.)



- 2. Use the up and down arrow keys to display the **View Reports** option and press ENTER.
- 3. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the **Summary Z** by **Server** or the **Summary X** by **Server** option and press ENTER.
- 4. Use the up and down arrow keys to select the name of the individual server and press ENTER.
- 5. Wait for the report to be generated.
- 6. Use the right arrow key to print the report or the left arrow key to exit the report.

Use the up and down arrow keys to view the report. Press ENTER to quit viewing.

### Note

□ The Z number is the number of summary Z reports run for that server. You can detect any unauthorized use of Z reports if you know what this number should be. (This Z number is separate from the ECU's Z number.)

Station 1	Date: 08/26/96	Time: 06:47:18 PM
Z Number 3		
Server: MIKE		
All-Bottle Sales		
	Portions	Sales
Price Level A	18	25.75
Price Level B	17	145.38
Price Level C	13	15.75
Price Level D	17	21.25
Totals	65	208.13
Flow Meter Sales		
	Volume (oz)	Sales
Price Level A	169.00	51.00
Price Level B	144.07	42.50
Price Level C	0.00	0.00
Price Level D	0.00	0.00
Totals	313.07	93.50
Total Sales MIKE		301.63

Berg All-Bottle 744 Summary Z by Server Report

# Individual Server Reports Using the Server Menu

If you have option package **ID**, individual servers can view their own summary X reports if you enable this feature. Summary X reports show the total number of pours and the total sales for each price level. If you have option package **DX**, the server report also shows the total flow meter volume and sales and total combined sales for that server at all four price levels.







- To generate an individual server summary X report using the Server Menu:
- 1. Access the Server Menu. (Insert your key, press ENTER, select the Server Menu option and press ENTER.)

IICOT and ENTER
Server Menu
Der ver menu

- Use the up and down arrow keys to select the Summary X by Server option and press ENTER.
- 3. Wait for the report to be generated.
- 4. Use the left arrow key to exit the report or the right arrow key to print the report.

Use the up and down arrow keys to view the report. Press ENTER to quit viewing.

### Notes

- □ Individual servers can only access reports through the Server Menu if you have enabled this option in the Manager Menu. See *Enable Server Menu* in the *Pouring Control* section.
- □ The server key inserted to access the Server Menu must be listed in the current Key Assignment list to access reports.

Station 1	Date: 08/26/96	Time: 06:47:18 PM
Server: MIKE		
All-Bottle Sales		
Price Level A Price Level B Price Level C Price Level D	Portions 18 17 13 17	Sales 25.75 145.38 15.75 21.25
Totals	65	208.13
Flow Meter Sales		
Price Level A Price Level B Price Level C Price Level D	Volume (oz) 169.00 144.07 0.00 0.00	Sales 51.00 42.50 0.00 0.00
Totals	313.07	93.50
Total Sales MIKE		301.63

Berg All-Bottle 744 Summary X by Server Report

# **Clear Cumulative Sales**

The **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU keeps a running total of all sales separate from the sales totals cleared in Z reports. The cumulative sales total appears on both the summary and detailed X and Z reports (but not server summary reports). To clear these cumulative sales, you must have a dealer or manager key and use a password (if you've defined a password).

### Available in Option Package(s): 744-Basic 744-CR AR FM ID DX





Use←↑↓ →and	ENTER	Ļ
Password _		

- To clear cumulative sales
- 1. Insert your **Manager** access key in the ECU's key slot and press ENTER.

IIse1, and ENTER
Manager Menu

- Use the up and down arrow keys to display the Clear Cum Sales option and press ENTER.
- 3. Key in the password and press ENTER.

Use the left and right arrow keys to move the cursor through the five fields. Use the up and down arrow keys to select characters from the following list:  $! " \# \$ \% \& ' () * +, - . / 0-9 : ; < = > ? @ A-Z [ (yen character) ] ^ ` a-z { | } \rightarrow and space in that order.$ 

If you haven't defined a password, press ENTER.

If you successfully match the defined password, the display tells you when the sales are cleared.



The display returns to the Clear Cum Sales option.

### Notes

- □ The cumulative sales password is case sensitive, and is defined in the Dealer Menu. See *Cumulative Sales Password* in the *ECU Setup* section.
- You typically clear cumulative sales after running a Z report. If you clear cumulative sales with active sales data still in the ECU, your first Z report after clearing cumulative sales will show higher totals than the cumulative sales.

Bera	All-Bottle	744	Summary	Х	Report
DCLA	AII DOCCIC	/ 1 1	Dunnary	77	RCPOLC

Station	1	Date:	06/23/96	Time:	09:49:00	РM

#### All-Bottle Sales

		Portions	Sales
Price Le	vel A	35	48.75
Price Le	vel B	21	150.88
Price Le	vel C	34	41.75
Price Le	vel D	36	44.25
Totals		126	285.63

Report Total Sales

285.63

0.00

Cumulative Sales

Clearing cumulative sales resets the running total to O.

# Maintenance and Upgrading

Proper cleaning and maintenance of the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system is essential. Refer to information in this section for the following tasks:

Clean the All-Bottle 744 or 1544 ECU	.9-2
Clean the All-Bottle Coded Pourers	.9-3
Replace the ECU Battery	.9-4
Change the EPROM	.9-6
Install an Option Board	.9-8

# **Clean the ECU**

Clean the ECU and activator ring about once a week. The ECU is designed to protect the electronics inside from moisture, but bartenders should still be cautioned to avoid splashing water or drinks on the ECU.

Available in Option Package(s):	744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	☑ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
---------------------------------	-----------	----------	------	------	------	-------------

#### ■ To clean the All-Bottle 744 or 1544 ECU:

- 1. Wipe the front of the ECU with a damp (not dripping) cloth or sponge.
- 2. Wipe the activator ring and activator ring holder with a damp (not dripping) cloth or sponge.

### Note

Do not attempt any more thorough cleaning of an ECU, and absolutely do not attempt to clean any internal circuit boards or surfaces.



All-Bottle 744 ECU

# **Clean the Coded Pourers**

The All-Bottle coded pourers are carefully designed for liquor dispensing applications. They impart no taste or odor to liquor and should only be cleaned with clear water. Each pourer should be cleaned every time it is removed from a bottle. Berg provides a pourer washing fixture for this purpose.



replace it.

elasticity. If the plastic insert remains stiff after cleaning,

# **Replace the ECU Battery**

If AC power to the ECU is constantly maintained, the lithium battery inside the ECU should provide years of service. The symptoms of a dying battery may include loss of setup data or sales records when the ECU is unplugged.

Available in Option Package	e(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ID	<b>☑ DX</b>	
	1.	To replace the Run a Z report information. It configuration	he battery t on the syste f you do not a report to save	in a 744 om to save already h e all the s	t or 1544 e the lates ave copie setup and	<b>4 ECU:</b> st sales s, run a calibrat	ion data,	
	2.	a price/portion Unplug the EC ECU.	Treport and a	nnect all	cables to	the back	c of the	
	3.	Loosen the two wrench. Loose with a nut driv	o screws on e en the stand o er. Open the	each side off nuts o bottom o	of the EC n the back of the ECU	CU with c of the l U.	a hex ECU	
Ļ	4.	Remove the old battery by inserting the tip of a small screwdriver under it and gently prying it from its socket.						
	5.	Insert the new battery into the battery socket, being sure align the positive "+" side of the battery with the positiv side of the socket. When fully inserted, the battery will b level with the ends of the socket.						
	6.	Replace the bo that secure it o back.	ottom of the H on the sides a	ECU by t nd the tw	ightening o stand o	the four ff nuts o	screws on the	
	7.	Plug in the EC	CU.					
	8.	Using the confi reenter the set system.	figuration, pr up, calibratic	ice/portion and po	on and PL rtion size	U repor. data for	ts, the	







Lithium is poisonous if swallowed. Be careful not to puncture the battery case when removing an old battery or inserting a new one. Lithium batteries are not rechargeable and should be properly disposed of upon removal. Replace an old battery with Berg PN 8007776, a Duracell type DL1/3N, or an equivalent replacement battery.

Caution:



Electronic components are sensitive to static electricity. If possible, avoid working on the **744** or **1544** ECU while standing on a carpeted surface. Before you open the ECU, discharge any static electricity from your body by touching any known grounded metal surface. Also discharge the static repeatedly in like manner while working on the ECU.

# Change the EPROM

If you upgrade your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system, you need to replace the EPROM chip in the ECU. Replacing the chip is not difficult–it just requires a certain amount of care to protect the fragile pins on the sides of the chip.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>	
	To change t	he EPROM	in a 744	4 or 154	4 ECU:	:	
1.	. Run a Z report on the system to save the latest sales information. If you do not already have copies, run a configuration report to save all the setup and calibration data a price/portion report and a PLU report. This is necessary because changing EPROMs clears all setup and sales data in the ECU.						
2.	Unplug the EC ECU.	CU and disco	nnect all	cables to	the back	c of the	
3.	Loosen the two wrench. Loose with a nut driv	o screws on e en the stand c ver. Open the	each side off nuts of bottom c	of the EC n the back of the ECU	CU with t of the I U.	a hex ECU	
4.	Remove the ol PN 8004798). Note the orien	d EPROM w Follow the in tation of the o	rith the Plastruction thip.	ROM rem ns accomp	over too panying	ol (Berg the tool.	
5.	Insert the new corner of the c should match	EPROM into hip with the a the orientatio	o the sock angled co n of the c	ket by alig orner of th old chip.)	ning the socke	e angled t. (It	
	Be sure all EP care not to ber straight down	ROM pins ar nd or damage on the EPRC	e aligned any of th M until i	l with the ne pins. G t locks in	socket. ently pr to positi	Take ess on.	
6.	Replace the bo that secure it o back.	ottom of the E on the sides a	ECU by ti nd the tw	ghtening o stand o	the four ff nuts o	screws on the	
7.	Plug in the EC	CU.					
8.	Using the confi reenter the set system.	figuration, pr up, calibratio	ice/portion and po	on and PL rtion size	U repor. data for	ts, the	
No	ote						
	If you have AI	I-Bottle Mai	nager sa	ve a file v	with curr	rent	

setup data before changing the EPROM. You can then use

this file to easily restore the data to the ECU.



### Caution:



Electronic components are sensitive to static electricity. To prevent damage, the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** option card and EPROM are shipped in protective anti-static packaging. Before removing these components from their protective packaging discharge any static electricity from your body by touching any known grounded metal surface. Also, if possible, avoid working on the **744** or **1544** ECU while standing on a carpeted surface. Similarly, before you open the ECU, discharge any static electricity from your body by touching any known grounded metal surface. Discharge the static repeatedly in like manner while working on the ECU.

# **Install an Option Board**

If you upgrade your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system, you need to install an option board in the ECU for option packages **AR**, **FM**, **ID** or **DX**. The option board provides the ports to connect a printer, remote server access box and flow meters.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic	□ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
	To install an	option boa	ard in a	744 or <sup>-</sup>	1544 E0	CU:
1.	Run a Z report information. It configuration a price/portion because install data in the EC	t on the syste f you do not a report to save n report and a ling an option U.	m to save llready h e all the s PLU rep 1 board c	e the lates ave copie setup and port. This lears all s	t sales s, run a calibrati is neces etup and	ion data, ssary 1 sales
2.	Unplug the EC ECU.	CU and discor	nnect all	cables to	the back	c of the
3.	3. Loosen the two screws on each side of the ECU with a hex wrench. Loosen the stand off nuts on the back of the ECU with a nut driver. Open the bottom of the ECU.					
4.	4. Locate the 34-pin header on the ECU system board.					
5.	5. Match the 34-pin connector on the bottom of the option with the 34-pin header on the system board. (Two stand screws protrude through two holes in the option board wit is aligned correctly.)					on board ndoff 1 when
6.	Press down ge ports attached of the ECU.	ntly to lock the option	he option board sh	board in ould be f	to positi acing th	on. The e back
7.	Secure the opt standoff screw	ion board. Us and tighten	se a wash with a nu	ner and nu at driver.	it on eac	ch
6.	Replace the co each side of th down nuts that ECU with a nu	over on the E0 e ECU with a t secure the o at driver.	CU. Tigh 1 hex wre ption boa	ten the tw ench. Tigh ard to the	vo screw aten the l back of	rs on hold the
7.	Plug in the EC	CU.				
8.	Using the confi reenter the set system.	figuration, pr up, calibratio	ice/portion n and portion	on and PL rtion size	U repor data for	ts, the



### Caution:



Electronic components are sensitive to static electricity. To prevent damage, the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** option card and EPROM are shipped in protective anti-static packaging. Before removing these components from their protective packaging discharge any static electricity from your body by touching any known grounded metal surface. Also, if possible, avoid working on the **744** or **1544** ECU while standing on a carpeted surface. Similarly, before you open the ECU, discharge any static electricity from your body by touching any known grounded metal surface. Discharge the static repeatedly in like manner while working on the ECU.

# All-Bottle Manager Software

The **All-Bottle Manager** software is a convenient alternative to data entry at the ECU. It does not offer any additional liquor control features; it simply provides a computer format for entering portion, price and PLU data and for generating reports. To use the software, be sure you've installed a connection from the ECU to your computer. See *Interface the ECU to a Serial Printer or Computer* in the *Hardware Installation* section. See the online help accompanying the software or use this section for help with the following tasks:

Install the Software	
Communication Settings	
Price and Volume Units	
Select an ECU Type	
Transfer Data between the ECU and the Computer	
Define Prices and Portion Sizes	
Define PLUs	
Set Flow Meter Counts and Price per Unit	
Print Setup Data	
Key Assignment List	
Generate Reports	
Perform a Loopback Test	
Perform a Communication Test	
Check Option Package	
Diagnostic Mode	
All-Bottle Manager Files	

# Install the Software

The **All-Bottle Manager** software comes with its own install program. Simply respond to its prompts for an easy software installation.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	⊠ DX	
<b>1</b> .	<b>To install th</b> Launch Windo	e All-Bottle	Manag	er softw	are:		
2.	2. Insert the All-Bottle Manager disk into drive A.						
3.	Select <b>File</b> from the Program Manager menu bar (Windows 3.1), or select <b>Start</b> (Windows 95).						
4.	Select <b>Run</b> fro	om the menu.					
5.	Type <b>a:\setup</b>	and press En	nter.				
6.	<ol> <li>When prompted, enter the dealer's name and phone number for technical support and click Next. (The default technic support is Berg Company.)</li> </ol>						
7.	When prompt directory (C:\) different desti	ed, click <b>Nex</b> BergAB\) for nation, enter a	t to accept the software directly the the software directly and the software directly a new directly a set of the software d	ot the defa vare. If yo ectory.	ault dest ou prefe	ination a	
8.	When the insta <b>Bottle Manag</b> (Windows 3.1 the Berg All-E	allation is cor ger icon in the ) or click on t Bottle folder (	nplete, de e Berg Al the <b>All-B</b> Windows	ouble-clic ll-Bottle p <b>ottle Ma</b> s 95) to us	ck on the program <b>nager</b> ic se the so	e <b>All-</b> group on in ftware.	

### Notes

- □ To communicate with the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU, your computer must be linked to the ECU using the converter assembly that comes with the software. See *Interface the 744* or *1544 to a Printer or Computer* in the *Hardware Installation* section.
- □ To communicate with more than one ECU, see *Install a Switch Box with a Serial Printer or Computer Interface* in the *Hardware Installation* section.

	Technical Support Info		×
Enter the dealer's name and phone number for technical support.		Please ente information case of que and number default. Dealer: Phone:	er the dealer's name and phone number. This will appear in the About box for customer reference in estions about this product. If you do not enter a name er, Berg's name and phone number will be entered by Ioe Dealer (123) 456-7890

	📑 Berg All-Bottle	e Manager 2.0				_ 🗆 ×
Menu bar ———	<u> </u>	orts <u>D</u> iagnostics	<u>H</u> elp			
	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	EEF
	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BEF
	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BEP
	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BEF
	BERG	BERG	EERG	BERG	BERG	BEF
	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BERG	BEF
	- DERA	- -	- -		- -	ra re r

# **Communication Settings**

The communication settings in your ECU and computer must match for data to be transferred.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX

- To change communication settings:
- 1. Select Setup from the All-Bottle Manager menu bar.
- 2. Select **Communications...** from the **Setup** menu.
- 3. Select the COM port your computer uses to communicate with the ECU.
- 4. Select the baud rate used for communication. This rate must match the baud rate entered at the ECU.
- 5. Click **OK** to save your selections. The software stores your selections, so you don't have to reset them each time you start the program.

#### Note

□ The default baud rate in the ECU is 19200. Generally speaking, you should use the fastest rate at which you can successfully communicate with the ECU.



### **Price and Volume Units**

The price and volume unit settings in your ECU and computer must match for price and portion setup data to be transferred. If the price and volume units do not match at the time you run a report with the software, the data is sent in the format set at the ECU.

Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🗹 DX

### To change price and volume unit settings:

- 1. Select Setup from the All-Bottle Manager menu bar.
- 2. Select **Price & Volume Units...** from the **Setup** menu.
- 3. Select the price format used at the ECU to record sales.
- 4. Select the volume units used at the ECU to measure portions.
- 5. Click **OK** to save your selections. The software stores your selections, so you don't have to reset them each time you start the program.



## Select an ECU Type

You must specify which type of ECU you have (744 or 1544) for the software to correctly access and transfer data to the ECU.

# Available in Option Package(s): ☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ☑ AR ☑ FM ☑ ID ☑ DX Image: To select an ECU type:

- 1. Select Setup from the All-Bottle Manager menu bar.
- 2. Select **Select ECU type...** from the **Setup** menu.
- 3. Select the ECU type.
- 4. Click **OK** to save your selection. The software stores your selection, so you don't have to reset it each time you start the program.







## Transfer Data between the ECU and the Computer

An important part of entering portion, price and other data with **All-Bottle Manager** software is getting that information from the computer into the ECU (and back to the computer again if you want to edit your choices). Transferring data is easy, but it's important to understand which data you're working with at all times.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	⊠ DX
	If you already ECU and you these steps to	have price/p want to edit transfer the d	ortion/PI the data a lata.	LU data en at the com	ntered at iputer, p	t the erform
-	To transfer	data from t	he ECU	to the c	omput	er:
1.	Select Setup	from the All-	Bottle M	anager n	ienu bar	
2.	Select Prices/	Portions/PL	Us fro	m the Set	t <b>up</b> men	u.
	The Price/Por Prices & Port	rtion/PLU Se ions tab sele	etup scre	en is disp	layed wi	ith the
3.	Click Read E	CU.				
	Data for all the <b>Portions</b> , <b>PLU</b> to the compute	ree tabs of th Js, Flow Me er at the same	e Setup s <b>ters)</b> is tr time.	screen ( <b>Pr</b> ransferrec	' <b>ices &amp;</b> 1 from tl	ne ECU
4.	Perform the net all three tabs ( <i>Define Portion</i> <i>Meter Counts</i>	ecessary step (Prices & Po n Sizes and F and Price pe	s to enter ortions, F Prices, De er Unit in	r or edit th PLUs, Flo efine PLU this section	te correct <b>w Mete</b> <i>Is</i> and <i>Se</i> ion.	et data in <b>rs)</b> . See et Flow
No	Notes					
	Communication ECU and communication and <i>Price and</i>	on settings, p puter must m <i>Volume Unit</i>	rice form natch. Sec ts in this	nat and vo e <i>Commu</i> section.	lume un nication	its at the Settings
	You cannot pe transferred.	erform other o	operation	s while th	ie data is	being
	If you encount	ter difficulty	commun	icating w	ith the F	CU

□ If you encounter difficulty communicating with the ECU, see the *Troubleshooting* section.
If you are entering initial setup data at the computer and you want to send it to the ECU or you've edited data from the ECU and now you want to send it back, perform these steps to transfer the data.

- To transfer data from the computer to the ECU:
- 1. Select **Setup** from the **All-Bottle Manager** menu bar.
- 2. Select **Prices/Portions/PLUs...** from the **Setup** menu.

The **Price/Portion/PLU Setup** screen is displayed with the **Prices & Portions** tab selected.

- 3. Perform the necessary steps to enter or edit the correct data in all three tabs (**Prices & Portions**, **PLUs**, **Flow Meters**). See *Define Portion Sizes and Prices*, *Define PLUs* and *Set Flow Meter Counts and Price per Unit* in this section.
- 4. When you have completed editing for all three tabs, click **Load ECU**.

Data for all three tabs (**Prices & Portions**, **PLUs**, **Flow Meters**) of the current **Setup** screen is transferred from the computer to the ECU at the same time.

This transfer of data to the ECU overwrites any data previously entered at the ECU or previously sent to the ECU from the computer.



Lower portion of Price/Portion/PLU Screen

# **Define Portion Sizes and Prices**

You can enter all portion sizes and prices using one form in the **All-Bottle Manager** software. You can then save your entries to a file, print them out and/or download them to the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic ☑ 🛛	744-CR	⊠ AR	<b>☑ FM</b>	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>			
	To define portio	on sizes	and pri	ces:					
1.	Select Setup from	n the All-B	ottle Ma	anager m	enu bar				
2.	Select Prices/Portions/PLUs from the Setup menu.								
	The Price/Portion Prices & Portions	n/PLU Set s tab selec	t <b>up</b> scree	en is displ	ayed wi	th the			
3.	To enter portions a step 4.	and prices	for the f	irst time:	proceed	l with			
	To edit portions an Data between the proceed with step 4	nd prices f <i>ECU and</i> 4.	from the <i>Comput</i>	ECU: see <i>er</i> in this	e <i>Transfe</i> section.	erring Then			
	To edit a file you'v <b>Open</b> and enter the file contains data f <b>PLUS, Flow Meter</b> 4.	we previou the name of for all three the for s) of the	sly saved the file tabs ( <b>I</b> <b>Setup</b> so	d at the co you want <b>Prices &amp;</b> creen. Pro	to edit. Portion	: click This <b>s</b> , ith step			
4.	Select the correct r keys, the Tab key,	row and co the Enter	olumn in key or a	the table mouse.	e using a	rrow			
5.	Enter the correct p whole number, you	oortion siz u don't nee	es and/o ed to ente	r prices. l er a decin	f your e nal point	entry is a t.			
б.	When you've comp data (if any) in the <i>Define PLUs</i> and <i>S</i> in this section.	pleted you e other tab Set Flow I	ar entries as ( <b>PLUs</b> Meter Co	, enter or , <b>Flow M</b> ounts and	edit the <b>eters)</b> . S Price p	correct See <i>per Unit</i>			
7.	To save your entrie <b>Save</b> . Data in all t	es in the co	omputer is saved	file you'v at the sar	ve opene ne time.	d: click			
	To save your entried enter the name you all three tabs is save	es in a new u want to g ved at the	w compu give the same tin	tter file: c file and c ne.	lick <b>Sa</b> v lick <b>OK</b>	<b>/e As</b> , <b>.</b> Data in			
8.	To download price Data between the	es and por ECU and	tions to t <i>Comput</i>	the ECU: <i>er</i> in this	see <i>Trai</i> section.	nsfer			
9.	To print the price a <i>Setup Data</i> in this	and portio section.	n entries	you've n	nade: see	e Print			

The four price levels and seven or fifteen price codes are denoted by A1-7 (or 1-15), B1-7 (or 1-15), C1-7 (or 1-15), etc.  $\searrow$ 

The Prices & Portions tab

PLUs Elow Meters

Regular

Portion

(oz)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Regula Price

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Large Price

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Large

Portion

(oz)

0 00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Print Prices & Portions

Print PLUs

Small Price

0.00

0 00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Read ECU

Load ECU

Click Close to return to the main menu.

> Special Price

> > 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 🖕

Special

Portion

(oz)

0.00

0 00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

<u>C</u>lose

<u>H</u>elp

×

.

#### Price/Portion/PLU Setup

Small

Portion

(oz) — D.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Prices & Portions

Level

and Code

A - 2 A - 3

A - 4

A - 5

A - 6 A - 7

B - 1

B - 2 B - 3 B - 4

B - 5

B - 6

B - 7

<u>0</u>pen..

<u>S</u>ave

Save <u>A</u>s..

A-

Use the arrow keys, the Tab key, the Enter key or a mouse to move between rows and \_\_\_\_\_ columns.

If your entry is a whole number, you don't need to enter a decimal point. If you make a mistake, use the Delete key to erase any amount currently highlighted.

If you have All-Bottle 744 – Basic or CR, just enter portion sizes.

Click Open to view a previously saved file. The file contains data for all three tabs.

Click Save to replace previous data in the file with the new data. If you have PLU or flow meter data in the file it will also be saved. Click Save As... to save the file under a new name. Click Print Prices & Portions for a report listing all prices and portions. Click Help if you have questions.

Click Read or Load the ECU to transfer data for all three setup tables (portion/price, PLU, flow meter) at the same time. Price format and volume units at the ECU and computer must match. You cannot perform other operations while the data is being transferred.

# **Define PLUs**

You can quickly enter PLUs (for the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU to communicate with a cash register) using the **All-Bottle Manager** software.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ID	<b>☑ DX</b>			
-	To define Pl	_Us:							
1.	Select Setup	from the All-I	Bottle Ma	<b>anager</b> m	enu bar				
2.	Select Prices/	Select Prices/Portions/PLUs from the Setup menu.							
	The Price/Poi Prices & Port	rtion/PLU Se ions tab sele	etup scree	en is disp	layed wi	ith the			
3.	Select the PLU	<b>Js</b> tab.							
4.	To enter PLUs	s for the first	time: pro	ceed with	n step 5.				
	To edit PLUs <i>ECU and Con</i> the data proce	from the ECU <i>puter</i> in this ed with step :	J: see <i>Tra</i> section. 5.	<i>ansfer Da</i> If you alr	<i>ta betwe</i> eady tra	een the nsferred			
	To edit a file y <b>Open</b> and enter file contains d <b>PLUS, Flow M</b> opened a file,	ou've previou er the name o ata for all thr <b>leters)</b> of the proceed with	asly save f the file ree tabs ( e <b>Setup</b> s step 5.	d at the co you want <b>Prices &amp;</b> creen. If	omputer to edit. <b>Portion</b> you alre	: click This <b>15</b> , ady			
5.	Select the corr keys, the Tab	rect row and a key, the Enter	column in r key or a	n the table mouse.	e using a	rrow			
6.	Enter the PLU	[s.							
7.	When you've of data (if any) in <b>Meters)</b> . See <i>D</i> <i>Meter Counts</i>	completed yo n the other ta Define Portic and Price pe	ur entries bs ( <b>Price</b> on Sizes a or Unit in	s, enter or es & Port and Prices this secti	edit the <b>ions</b> , <b>FI</b> 5 and <i>Se</i> on.	correct <b>ow</b> t Flow			
8.	To save your e <b>Save</b> . Data is	entries in the ontries saved for all	computer three tab	file you'v s.	ve opene	ed: click			
	To save your e enter the name saved for all th	entries in a ne e you want to hree tabs.	ew compu give the	iter file: c file and c	lick <b>Sa</b> v lick <b>OK</b>	<b>/e As</b> , <b>.</b> Data is			
9.	To download be the ECU and be	PLUs to the E <i>Computer</i> in	ECU: see this secti	<i>Transfer</i> on.	Data be	etween			
10	To print the Pl in this section.	LU entries yo	ou've mad	le: see Pr	int Setup	o Data			



# Set Flow Meter Counts and Price per Unit

If you have flow meters, the **All-Bottle Manager** software provides one table for entering all flow meter data.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic □ 744-CR □ AR ☑ FM □ ID ☑ DX
<b>•</b> 1	To set flow meter counts and price per unit:
1.	Select Setup from the An-Bottle Manager menu bar.
2.	Select <b>Prices/Portions/PLUs</b> from the <b>Setup</b> menu.
	The <b>Price/Portion/PLU Setup</b> screen is displayed with the <b>Prices &amp; Portions</b> tab selected.
3.	Select the <b>Flow Meters</b> tab.
4.	To enter data for the first time: proceed with step 5.
	To edit flow meter data from the ECU: see <i>Transferring Data between the ECU and Computer</i> in this section. If you already transferred the data proceed with step 5.
	To edit a file you've previously saved at the computer: click <b>Open</b> and enter the name of the file you want to edit. This file contains data for all three tabs ( <b>Prices &amp; Portions</b> , <b>PLUs, Flow Meters)</b> of the <b>Setup</b> screen. If you already opened a file, proceed with step 5.
5.	Select the correct row and column in the table using arrow keys, the Tab key, the Enter key or a mouse.
6.	Enter the correct flow meter data.
7.	When you've completed your entries, enter or edit the correct data (if any) in the other tabs ( <b>Prices &amp; Portions, PLUs</b> ). See <i>Define Portion Sizes and Prices</i> and <i>Define PLUs</i> in this section.
8.	To save your entries in the computer file you've opened: click <b>Save</b> . Data is saved for all three tabs.
	To save your entries in a new computer file: click <b>Save As</b> , enter the name you want to give the file and click <b>OK</b> . Data is saved for all three tabs.
9.	To download flow meter data to the ECU: see <i>Transfer Data</i> between the ECU and Computer in this section.
10	. To print the flow meter entries you've made: see <i>Print Setup Data</i> in this section.



# **Print Setup Data**

You can print a copy of portion size, price, PLU and flow meter data entered at the computer.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	<b>☑ FM</b>	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
	To print setu	ıp data:				
1.	Select Setup fr	rom the All-E	Bottle Ma	anager m	enu bar.	
2.	Select Prices/F	Portions/PL	Us froi	n the <b>Set</b>	up men	u.
	The Price/Port Prices & Porti	tion/PLU Se ions tab sele	tup scree cted.	en is displ	ayed wi	ith the
3.	Perform the net any of the three <b>Meters)</b> . See <i>D</i> and <i>Set Flow M</i> section.	cessary steps e tabs ( <b>Price</b> <i>Define Portio</i> <i>Aeter Counts</i>	s to enter es & Port on Sizes a g and Prid	or edit th ions, PL nd Prices ce per Un	e correc Us, Flow s, <i>Define</i> wit in this	et data in <b>w</b> e PLUs s
4.	To print price <b>Print Prices &amp;</b>	, portion an <b>Portions</b> .	d flow r	neter dat	a: Click	X
	To print PLU	data: Click	Print Pl	Us.		
	The Price and I <b>Notepad</b> wind any other comp	Portion Repo ow. You can puter file (say	ort or the now trea ve, print,	PLU Rep t the repo delete, et	oort appe ort as yo c.).	ears in a u would
5.	Select File from	n the menu b	oar.			
6.	To print the rep	port: select P	<b>rint</b> from	the File	menu.	
7.	To save a new a new a new a sector the name	report: selec of the file ar	ct <b>Save A</b> nd click <b>C</b>	<b>\s</b> from <b>)K</b> .	the File	e menu,
8.	To exit the No Portion/PLU S	otepad wind Setup screer	ow and r 1: select	eturn to tl <b>Exit</b> from	ne <b>Price</b> the <b>File</b>	e <b>/</b> menu.
No	tes					
	The setup data current entries does not refle you just perfo no further cha	printed from s in the <b>Pric</b> oct the curre ormed a <b>Rea</b> anges to the	n the Not ce/Portion nt entrie nd ECU of Setup s	epad win n/PLU So s in the I or Load E creen.	idow she etup sci ECU un ECU and	ows the reen. It lless l made

 The setup data reports are distinguished from other sales or ECU reports by the words "Current Settings" rather than "Station" at the top of the report.

The Notepad	📋 Untitled - No	otepad							- O ×
window	<u>File E</u> dit <u>S</u> ea	rch <u>H</u> elp							
	New		Bera A	11-Bottle	Price/P	ortion Re	port		
Select Save	 Open Save Save As	ıgs	Date:	10-16-199	7 ð	ime: 09:4	2:50		
the report to									
	Page Setup	Smi	.11	Pog	אבו	La	200	500	cial
a new file.	Print R	ZP	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price	Size	Price
	, E <u>x</u> it	00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
Select Print	Code 2	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
	Code 3	2.00	1.50	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
to send the	Code 4	2.00	1.00	4.00	1.75	6.00	2.75	3.50	1.50
report to a	Code 5	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
nrinter	Code o	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	0.00	3.00	3.50	2.00
	coue /	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	0.00	3.00	3.50	2.00
	Flow Meter	#1 Price	/oz Price	level A	0.30				
Select Exit to	Flow Meter	#2 Price	/oz Price	Level A	0.25				
	Flow Meter	#3 Price	/oz Price	Level A	1.00				
relurri lo lrie									
Setup screen.									
	Price Level	В		_	_			_	
		Sma	11	Regu	lar	La	rge .	Spe	cial
	Code	51Ze	Price	51Ze	Price	51Ze	Price	51Ze	Price
	Code 2	2.00	1.00	4.00 J. 00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	2.00
	Code 3	2.00	1.50	4.00	2.29	6 00	3 50	3 50	2.00
	Code 4	2.00	1.00	4.00	2.00	6.00	3.00	3.50	1.75
	Code 5	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
	Code 6	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
	Code 7	2.00	1.25	4.00	2.25	6.00	3.25	3.50	2.00
	Flow Meter	#1 Price	/oz Price	Level B	0.40				
	Flow Meter	#2 Price	Proz Price	Level B	0.35				
	LTOM NECEN	#3 Pr1C	eruz Price	revet B	1.25				

# **Key Assignment List**

The key assignment list in the **All-Bottle Manager** software is identical to the one at the ECU. Space is provided to list up to fifteen servers giving them active status at the ECU with a proper access key.

Available in Option Package(s):	□ 744-Basic	□ 744-CR		□ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
	To access th	ne kev assi	anment	list:		
1.	Select Setup f	from the All-I	Bottle Ma	anager m	nenu bar	
2.	Select Server	IDs from tl	he <b>Setup</b>	menu.		
_						
•	To edit the k	ey assignn	nent list	t from th	ne ECU	:
1.	Click Read E	LU.				
	To open a pr	reviously s	aved fil	e:		
1.	Click Open.					
2.	Enter the name	e of the file y	ou want	to edit. C	lick <b>OK</b> .	
	To enter or (	change ser	ver nan	005.		
-	Select the corr	ect row in the	e table.	103.		
2	Enter the serve	rname				
2.		in nume.				
-	To save you	r entries to	a file y	ou've o	pened:	
1.	Click Save.					
	To save you	r entries in	a new	file:		
1.	Click Save As	S				
2.	Enter the name	e you want to	o give you	ur file. Cl	ick <b>OK</b> .	
•	To download	d the key a	ssignm	ent list t	o the E	CU:
1.		50.				
	To print the	key assign	ment lis	st:		
1.	Click Report.					
2.	View the Serve	er ID report i	n a <b>Note</b>	pad wind	low.	
3.	Select File from	m the menu l	oar.			
4.	Select Print fr	om the <b>File</b> n	nenu.			



# **Generate Reports**

Any reports that can be generated from your **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** ECU can be generated with the **All-Bottle Manager** software. For detailed information on each report see the *Reports* section.

Available in Option Package(s):	T44-Basic	□ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ID	⊠ DX
	To generate i	reports:				
1.	Be sure you've e	enabled the	commun	ication op	otion at t	he ECU.
2.	Select Reports	from the	All-Bottl	e Manag	er menu	ı bar.
3.	Highlight the re	eport you wa	ant to run	from the	Report	<b>s</b> list.
4.	Click <b>OK</b> , or do	ouble-click t	he mouse	e on the d	esired re	eport.
5.	View the report	t in a <b>Notepa</b>	<b>ad</b> windo	ow.		
	To print the r	eport:				
1.	Select File from	n the menu b	oar.			
2.	Select <b>Print</b> fro	om the <b>File</b> n	nenu.			
	To save the r	eport in a	new file	<b>e</b> :		
1.	Select File from	n the menu b	oar.			
2.	Click Save As.					
3.	Enter the name	you want to	give you	ır file.		
4.	Click OK.					
No	otes					
	If you request a package, the so cannot access th cannot access	a report that ftware displ he report. Op any reports	is not va ays an er ption pac s with th	lid for yo ror messa kages <b>74</b> ie softwa	ur optio age and y <b>4-Basic</b> are.	n you and <b>CR</b>
	If you have opt Summary Z by will see a form I request the repo desired server of	ion package Server or Sulisting the cu ort. To run th or highlight t	<b>ID</b> or <b>D</b> ummary urrent act ne report, the server	X and yo X by Ser tive serve double-c r's name a	u run a ver repo ers when click on t and click	rt, you you the <b>OK</b> .



The Notepad ——	冒 Config - Notepad 图	
window	Eile Edit Search Help	
WINDOW	New Berg All-Bottle Configuration Report	
	Open	
Click Save As to	Save Date: 04/23/96 Time: 09:05:47 PM	
cave the report	Save As	
Save the report	Page Setup 1_ 69	
to a new file.	Print N	
	ange Manager Only Y	
	Exit jur Y	
Click Print to	Server Menu Active Y	
send the report /	Linefeeds to Printer Y	
to a print an	Restart Pour Delau (seconds) 2	
	Current Price Level B	
	Z Number 4	
Click Exit to	Price Format 999.99	
	Decimal Char. Period	
return to the	Volume Units 02 Date Cormat MM/DD/VV	
Reports screen.	Time Format 12 bour	
	Baud Rate 19200	
	Parity No Parity	
	Word Length 8-bits	
	Stop Bits 1 Stop Bit	
	Servers	
	Alice Z Number 3	
	Mike Z Number 3	
	Ron Z Number 3	
	Julie Z Number 3	
	L	

## **Perform a Loopback Test**

The **All-Bottle Manager** software provides diagnostic tests to verify communication between the ECU and your computer. The loopback test verifies you have a working, accessible COM port on your computer. You must have a loopback tester to connect to the port to perform this test.

Available in Option Package(s):	744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	☑ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
---------------------------------	-----------	----------	------	------	------	-------------

#### To perform a loopback test:

- 1. Attach the loopback tester to the COM port you want to test. You can connect the tester at various points in the connection (before or after the converter or cable) to verify a good connection with the equipment.
- 2. Select **Diagnostics** from the **All-Bottle Manager** menu bar.
- 3. Select Loopback Test... from the Diagnostics menu.
- 4. Click **Run** to begin testing.
- 5. Click **Stop** to end the test.
- 6. Click **Close** to return to the main menu.



# **Perform a Communication Test**

The communication test verifies the communication link between the ECU and your computer. It is very useful when you're troubleshooting a communication problem.

Available in Option Package(s):	☑ 744-Basic ☑ 744-CR ☑ AR ☑ FM ☑ ID ☑ DX
	To perform a communication test:
1.	Make sure the communication settings are correct at the ECU and the computer.
2.	Make sure the communications option is enabled at the ECU.
3.	Select <b>Diagnostics</b> from the <b>All-Bottle Manager</b> menu bar.
4.	Select <b>Communication Test</b> from the <b>Diagnostics</b> menu.
5.	Click <b>Run</b> to begin testing.
6.	Click <b>Stop</b> to end the test.
7.	Click <b>Close</b> to return to the main menu.
	🖼 Communications Test
	Number Number of Percentage of tests failures failed
The number of tests run should increase quickly.	0 0 0.0
You'll most likely see 100% failures or none	<u>R</u> un <u>C</u> lose
at all.	<u>Stop</u> <u>H</u> elp
Click Run to begin / the test.	Click Close to
	main menu.
	Click Stop to Click Help if you
	sup the rest. have questions.

have questions.

# **Check Option Package**

If you are unsure which **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** option package is installed on your ECU, you can run this check with the **All-Bottle Manager** software to verify your package.

#### ■ To check your option package:

- 1. Make sure the communication settings are correct at the ECU and the computer.
- 2. Make sure the communications option is enabled at the ECU.
- 3. Select **Diagnostics** from the **All-Bottle Manager** menu bar.
- 4. Select **Check Option Package** from the **Diagnostics** menu.

Berg All-Bottle Manager 🛛 🔣				
Option package is 1544-DX				
<u> </u>				
Click OK to return				

to the main menu.

# **Diagnostic Mode**

Diagnostic mode is an option of the **All-Bottle Manager** software that provides detailed information whenever errors occur. Berg Company service technicians may ask you to enable it if they are diagnosing a problem. Otherwise, you should leave this option disabled. By default, it is always disabled at program startup.

#### Available in Option Package(s): 🗹 744-Basic 🗹 744-CR 🗹 AR 🗹 FM 🗹 ID 🖾 DX

- To enable or disable diagnostic mode:
- 1. Select **Diagnostics** from the **All-Bottle Manager** menu bar.
- 2. Select **Diagnostic Mode** from the **Diagnostics** menu.
- 3. Click in the **Diagnostic Mode on** box.

An **x** in the box enables diagnostic mode.

4. Click **OK** to return to the main menu.



## **All-Bottle Manager Files**

This is a list of some of the files used by the **All-Bottle Manager** Setup program. For information about deleting the **All-Bottle Manager** software from your system, see Windows 3.1 online help for uninstalling programs.

Available in Option Package(s): 2744-Basic 744-CR AR FM D ID DX

#### Files installed in the program directory:

These are the main program and help files.

ABMGR.EXE

BRGABC10.DLL

ABMGR.HLP

#### Files created by the software:

These files are not installed by the Setup program, but are created as needed by the **All-Bottle Manager** software and saved (by default) in the program directory, except for BERG.INI.

#### BERG.INI

This file is used to keep track of your session settings so you don't need to reset them every time you use the program. The settings saved are COM Port, Baud Rate, ECU Type, Price Format and Volume Units. This file is also used by other Berg software products that may be installed on your computer, and is stored in the WINDOWS directory.

#### \*.PPN

Price/Portion/PLU file(s). See *Define Portion Sizes and Prices* in this section for more details about these files.

#### \*.SRV

Server ID key assignment list file(s). See *Key Assignment List* in this section for more details about these files.

#### DEBUG.INF

Created or updated when running in Diagnostic Mode. This file contains detailed output which may help a Berg service representative diagnose a problem with the software. You can safely delete this file at any time.



# All-Bottle 744/1544 Specifications

### **Basic System**

Electronic Control Unit size :	3.75 in (95.3 mm) H
	10.25 in (260.4 mm) W
	5.25 in (133.4 mm) D
Dispenser type:	Patented bottle pourers and activator ring
Number of brands:	Unlimited
Number of price codes:	Seven for 744, Fifteen for 1544
Portion size:	1/8 to 10 ounces (3.7 to 295.7 ml)
Number of portion sizes:	Four (presetable)/code/price level
Number of price levels:	Four – with unique portion per level
Calibration:	By portion
Display type:	LCD 2x20
	(shows portions dispensed/code and price level)

#### Options

Interface capabilities:	Computer
1	Minimum system requirements:
	386 DX IBM compatible PC
	Windows 3.1
	4 MB RAM
	VGA monitor
	3 MB available hard drive space
	Electronic Cash Register (ECR)
	Printer output – Centronics or RS-485 ports
Advanced reporting:	Reports formatted for an 80-column printer
Server ID:	Access keys (Manager & up to 15 Server keys)
Remote Server Access Box:	Additional access for Server keys
	2.5 in (64 mm) H
	5.0 in (127 mm) W
	4.5 in (115 mm) D
Flow meter input:	Monitor up to three Berg pulse-output flow meters
	1 required per beer, wine, soda or juice line
	Uses 29/32 in (23 mm) nuts & tailpieces
	1.2 in (30 mm) H
	1.0 in (25 mm) W
	2.4 in (61 mm) L

	hnic	2
160		aı

Electrical Requirements:	100-240 VAC, 50-60 Hz
-	0.7A, 5 VA
	Installation category II
	Pollution Degree 2
	Mains supply voltage fluctuations shall not exceed
	10 percent of the nominal supply voltage.
Protective Earthing Requirements:	The system must be connected to a properly grounded
	mains supply with an IEC approved three pronged
	power cord.
Environmental Conditions:	Maximum relative humidity 50-80 R.H.
	Operating temperature range $5^{\circ}-40^{\circ}$ C ( $41^{\circ}-104^{\circ}$ F).
	Maximum altitude 2,000 m (6,562 ft).
Fuses used in product:	Berg PN 8007422
	For North American installations (1/4 x 1, CSA
	certified)
	Littlefuse 313000
	Bussman MDL-3
	For European installations (5 x 20 mm, designed to
	IEC 127)
	Littlefuse 2183.15
	Bussman GDL-3.15A



#### The 744 or 1544 ECU will not power up when plugged in

- Is the power supply plugged into the J4B (external solenoid) port instead of the J5A port on the back of the ECU?
- Is the power supply plugged securely into the J5A port?

#### The 744 or 1544 does not dispense All-Bottle portions at all

- Have all the portion sizes been set to 0? (This can happen with the Clear Prices option in the Manager Menu.)
- Has the Disable Unit option been set to Y?

#### Option package ID or DX does not dispense when a Server key is inserted

- Is there another valid Server key in the other key slot? If so, the display reads "Both Keys" and pouring is disabled. (The ECU doesn't know to which key to assign the pour.)
- Does the name on the Server key exactly match a name in the Key Assignment list? The names are case sensitive.

#### The All-Bottle portions are inaccurate when you pour

- Are the correct portion sizes defined?
- Are the correct volume units defined?
- The All-Bottle calibration values may need to be adjusted.
- The coded pourers may need to be cleaned.

#### You can't access the Dealer Menu at the ECU

Are you using a valid Dealer key?

#### You can't access the Manager Menu at the ECU

Are you using a valid Dealer or Manager key?

#### The Manager Menu doesn't work below the Communications option

Comm Option Active is set to Y (used to communicate with a computer). Set to N to access the rest of the Manager Menu.

#### Printed reports are double-spaced where they should be single-spaced

Reconfigure the printer to suppress linefeeds, or set Linefeeds to Printer (in the Manager Menu) to N.

#### You can't clear cumulative sales, even with the password

Did you enter the password exactly as it is defined? The password is case sensitive.

# You are using an A/B switchbox with multiple ECUs and an active ECU reports all zeros on a Z report

Did you just run a Z report for one ECU and forget to change the switchbox to another ECU?

#### You can't access the Server Menu at the ECU

- Are you using a valid Dealer, Manager or Server key?
- Is the name on the key listed in the Key Assignment list? The names are case sensitive.
- Is the Server Menu Active option (in the Manager Menu) set to N? Set it to Y.
- Is the Communications option (in the Manager Menu) set to Y? Set it to N.

#### The flow meters are not generating any sales data at the ECU

• Check the wiring connection between each flow meter and the ECU.

#### The reported flow meter volumes are inaccurate

The flow meter count values need to be adjusted.

#### The 744 or 1544 ECU will not communicate with the All-Bottle Manager software

- Is the ECU powered up?
- Are all cable connections between the ECU and computer secure?
- Do the serial port settings at the computer and the ECU match? They must show the same baud rates, word length, parity and number of stop bits.
- Has the Communication option (in the Manager Menu) been set to Y?
- Use a loopback tester to pinpoint the breakdown in communication.
- Perform a communication test with the software. You can make adjustments while the test is running to see what solves the problem.

# You print Prices/Portions or PLUs from the Manager's Price/Portion/PLU Setup screen and the numbers don't accurately reflect what is in the ECU

These two print options only print what is currently in the Setup screen's tables, not what is in the ECU. Select Read ECU before printing (or just run the Price/Portion report or the PLU report from the Reports...menu of the software).

#### You get a Version Verify dialog box when running the Manager software

You'll see this when a file needed by the software has been deleted, moved or overwritten by an earlier version that may not work. Click on the filename(s) to see the version the software needs (Reference File) and the one it found on your system, if any (Actual File). Reinstalling the All-Bottle Manager software from the installation disk will usually fix this problem.

# Bar Management Tips

The suggestions in this section can help you manage your bar using the **All-Bottle 744** or **1544** system. They're proven tips to help you establish a uniform pricing structure that is consistent, manageable and easily trackable in the event of theft or breakage.

Coded Pourer Assignment	
Portioning Guidelines	
Pricing Guidelines	

# **Coded Pourer Assignment**

Categorizing your liquor helps you determine the number of coded pourers needed.

Available in Option Package	(s):	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊡ ID	⊠ DX
Coded Pourers	The price codes o by the placement	n the All-Bott of the metal c	le coded oding ba	pourers a nds on the	re detern e pourer	nined s.
	1 (		]∎	-		
	2		<b>-</b>			
	3	1+2=3	<b>-</b>			
	4			-		
	5	1 + 4 =5	<b>I</b>	-		
	6	2+4=6	<b>I</b>	-		
	7	1+2+4=7	<u> </u>	-		
	8		<b>_</b>	-		
	9		<b>I</b>	-		
	10		<b>I</b>	-		
	11		<b>_</b>	-		
	12	4 + 8 = 12	<b>I</b>	-		
	13		<b>_</b>	-		
	14	2 + 4 + 8 = 14	<u> </u>			
	15	1+2+4+8=15		-		

Categories of Liquor	One example of organizing your liquor by price codes is the following:			
	Code 1 Well Liquor			
	Code 2 Call Liquor			
	Code 3 Premium Liquor			
	Code 4 Domestic Cordials			
	Code 5 Premium Cordials			
	Code 6 Sherry			
	Code 7 Cognac			
	Use the <b>All-Bottle 744/1544 Pourer Worksheet</b> to categorize every type or brand of liquor used at the bar. Make additional copies of the list if necessary.			
Free Poured Brands	Some brands will continue to be free-poured and should not be entered on the list. They include Bailey's Irish Cream (and substitutes), Triple Sec, Galliano, Sweet Vermouth, Dry Vermouth, Creme de Cassis and Creme de Noya.			
	These items, with the exception of Bailey's (which will not work well on the system), are used like orange juice in a Screwdriver. They are mixers and have no retail value. However, if your customers frequently order any of these brands on the rocks or up, you should plan to lock them up with the appropriate pourers and enter them on the list.			
Number of Pourers Needed	When you've listed each brand, use the <b>All-Bottle 744/1544</b> <b>Pourer Worksheet</b> to determine the quantity of each pourer needed. List the number of bottles of each brand used in the racks and reserve cabinets (par stock).			
	Include enough pourers to avoid having the bar restocked in mid- shift. Typically, you should have enough liquor locked up with coded pourers for twenty-four hours of operation.			
	For example, if there are three speed racks with one bottle of bar vodka in each plus eight bottles in the par stock for backup, the quantity of pourers needed for bar vodka would be eleven.			











Brand	Rack Bottles	Reserve Bottles		Brand	Rack Bottles	Reserve Bottles	
			Ħ				Ħ
			7				0
			/				0
Total Pourers		+	=	Total Pourers		+	=





Brand	Rack Bottles	Reserve Bottles	
			Ħ
			<b>1</b> 1
Total Pourers		+	=





Brand	Rack Bottles	Reserve Bottles	
			₩
			1 /
			14
			<b>·</b> ·
Total Pourers		+	=

Brand	Rack Bottles	Reserve Bottles	
			Ħ
			15
			IJ
Total Pourers		+	=

# **Portioning Guidelines**

\_\_\_\_

Once you've categorized your liquor, you can determine which portion sizes are most appropriate for each category.

Available in Option Package(s	s): 🗹 744-Basic	☑ 744-CR	⊠ AR	⊠ FM	⊠ ID	<b>☑ DX</b>
Small Portions of Liquor	Program the small mixed drinks.	portion sizes	s with the	amount y	/ou'll us	se in
	For instance, if yo 1.00 each for a sm	u sell an Ice and an Ice and a sell an Ice and a sell an	Tea for \$ /2 shot)	3.00, you of Gin, Vo	're charg odka and	ging 1 Rum.
	A four liquor drink (Long Island Ice Tea) would therefore be priced at \$4.00 (1.00 x 4).					
	If a customer orde Beefeater, Smirno would be \$5.00 (1 Triple Sec is norm retail value.	red a "call" L ff, Cuervo an .25 for a sma ally free pour	Long Islan d Bacard Ill portion red (like	nd Ice Tea li (call bra n of a call Vermouth	ו using nds), th brand x ו) as it h	e price (4). The as no
Regular and Large Portions of Liquor	Your glassware pl large portion sizes overriding factor size is how each p	lays an impor s. This is part in choosing b portion looks	tant role ficularly t etween a in the gla	in definin true with regular o	ig regula rock drii r large p	ar or nks. The portion
	For example, a 4 of 1 3/4 to 2 ounces of approximately 4 of difference betwee dry Martini is the price of all well b or on the rocks is not pouring rock of portion and charge glassware so the r	ounce Martin of gin. An 8 counces of gin. on a regular M amount of Ver rand Martinis the same. If y drinks with the e the same pri- egular size sh	i glass is ounce gla . Vermou fartini an ermouth j s, whethe your glass ne regular ice. Alter not looks	typically ss would th is free d an extra poured, nor r they are sware nece portion, mately, ch good.	served v need poured, a, extra, ot more regular ressitates pour the nange yc	with so the extra gin. The , dry, up s your e large our

Small Portions of Cordial	Program this portion size with the amount used for two liquor drinks.			
	For example, the recipe for a Black Russian calls for a small portion of Kahlua and a regular portion of vodka. If your Black Russian selling price is \$3.25 and you charge \$2.00 for the vodka, you are then charging \$1.25 for a small portion of Kahlua.			
	Using these prices, all two liquor drinks using well liquor and premium cordials are \$3.25. If a Smirnoff Black Russian is ordered, the price is \$3.50 (\$2.25 for a regular call vodka + 1.25 for a small premium cordial). A Black Russian made with Absolut is \$3.75 (\$2.50 for a regular premium vodka and 1.25 for a small premium cordial).			
Regular Portions of Cordial	Use this portion size for up cordials as well as on the rocks drinks if your rock glass accommodates the amount. We strongly recommend a brandy snifter for up cordials. The presentation is elegant and you don't have to purchase as many types of glassware.			
Large Portions of Cordial	Use this portion size for rock or cream drinks if your glassware makes it necessary. Of course, you should charge a higher price for the large portion. Typically, if you need to define a large portion for liquor on the rocks, you also need to define a large portion for a cordial on the rocks.			

# **Pricing Guidelines**

With your liquor categorized and portion sizes defined, it's easier to see your overall price structure and define the appropriate price for each portion.

Available in Option Package	(s): 🗆 744-Basic	□ 744-CR	⊠ AR	<b>☑ FM</b>	⊠ ID	⊠ DX		
Defining Prices	The <b>All-Bottle 744</b> or <b>1544</b> uses the concept of building your drink prices based on the ingredients used. The more expensive the liquor, the higher the price that is charged. This practice is usually standard with highballs, but it will now hold true on all multi-liquor drinks as well.							
	Example: The following prices are programmed into the ECU:							
	Bar Vodka Regular portion \$2.00							
	Call Vodka (Smirnoff) Regular portion 2.25			25				
	Premium Vodka (A	Absolut) R	egular por	tion 2.	50			
	Kahlua (premium	cordial) Si	nall portio	on 1.	25			
	If a customer orders a Black Russian, the price would be built as follows:							
	Bar Vodka Black Russian $2.00 + 1.25 = 3.25$							
	Call Vodka Black Russian $2.25 + 1.25 = 3.50$				)			
	Premium Vodka Black Russian $2.50 + 1.25 = 3.75$				5			
Using Price Levels	One example of four price levels used with the <b>All-Bottle 744</b> or <b>1544</b> is the following :							
	Happy Hour price level A							
	Regular	pı	price level B					
	Entertainment	pr	ice level (	2				
	Special and/or Promotion price level D							
	In addition to changing the price of a drink for each price level, you can also change the portion size. For instance, you can reduce the size of a regular portion of well liquor from 1 1/8 ounce to 1 ounce during Happy Hour.							
	Some owners of the <b>All-Bottle 744</b> or <b>1544</b> that do not use price levels use this feature for shift pricing–morning shift (price level A), afternoon shift (price level B) and so on.					se price se level		
# Index

#### Α

Access key how to make a manager 4-4 how to make a server 4-5 how to pour with server 7-4, 7-6 how to read 4-2 how to read a remote server 4-3 key assignment list 4-6 key assignment list at the computer 10-18 Activator ring description of 1-4 how to use 7-2, 7-3, 7-4 Activator ring holder 2-2 Advanced Reporting option package description of 1-2 how to install a parallel printer interface 2-8 how to install a serial printer or PC interface 2-10 site assessment for 1-7 All Server Summary Reports 8-18 All-Bottle 744/1544Pourer Worksheet 13-4 AR. See Advanced Reporting option package Arrow keys 1-11

#### В

Basic option package description of 1-2 site assessment for 1-7 Battery based power supply 2-2 Baud rate how to set at the computer 10-4 how to set at the ECU 3-14

#### С

Calibrate coded pourers 6-2 Change price levels 7-2 Change the EPROM 9-6 Check option package 10-24 Clean the coded pourers 9-3 Clean the ECU 9-2 Clear all prices, portions and PLUs 6-12 Clear All-Bottle prices, portions and PLUs 6-10 Clear cumulative sales 8-24 Clear flow meter prices 6-11 Coded Pourer Worksheet 13-4 Coded pourers description of 1-4 how to assign to liquor 13-2 how to calibrate 6-2 how to clean 9-3 how to install 2-4

Communication settings at the computer 10-4 Communication test 10-23 Computer communication how to change settings at the computer 10-4 how to enable at the ECU 5-3 Computer interface 2-10 Configuration report 8-12 Country setup 3-2 CR. *See* Electronic Cash Register option package Cumulative sales how to clear 8-24 how to define a password for 3-10

#### D

Date format 3-7 Dealer Menu how to navigate 1-11 list of options 1-12 Decimal character 3-5 Default messages option 3-12 Define flow meter price per unit 6-7 Define PLUs at the computer 10-12 at the ECU 6-6 Define portion sizes at the computer 10-10 at the ECU 6-4 tips on 13-8 Define prices at the computer 10-10 at the ECU 6-5 tips on 13-10 Deluxe option package description of 1-2 how to install a remote server access box 2-14 how to install flow meters 2-12 how to interface to a parallel printer 2-8 how to interface to a serial printer or computer 2-10 how to interface to an ECR 2-6 site assessment for 1-7 Detailed reports 8-4 Diagnostic messages option 3-11 Diagnostic mode 10-25 Disable unit 5-2 DX. See Deluxe option package

#### Ε

ECR (Electronic Cash Register) interface 2-6 ECU (Electronic Control Unit) description of 1-4

how to clean 9-2 how to install 2-2 specifications 11-2 ECU battery 9-4 ECU display window 1-11 ECU menus how to access 1-8 how to navigate 1-11 Electronic Cash Register option package description of 1-2 how to install an ECR interface 2-6 site assessment for 1-7 Enable computer communication 5-3 Enable OFF signal 3-17 Enable price level change 5-4 EPROM, how to change 9-6 External solenoid output 2-16

#### F

Flow meter how to clear prices 6-11 how to control with server ID 2-16 how to define price per unit at the ECU 6-7 how to install 2-12 how to set counts and prices at the computer 10-14 how to set counts at the ECU 6-8 how to use with server ID 7-6 specifications 11-2 Flow Meter option package description of 1-2 how to install flow meters 2-12 site assessment for 1-7 FM. *See* Flow Meter option package

## G

Gather customer setup information 1-7

## Η

Hourly sales report 8-8

#### 

ID. See Server ID option package
Individual server summary reports

how to generate with the Manager Menu 8-20
how to generate with the Server Menu 8-22

Install a parallel printer interface 2-8
Install a remote server access box 2-14

Install a serial printer or computer interface 2-10 Install an ECR interface 2-6 Install an external solenoid output 2-16 Install an option board 9-8 Install flow meters 2-12 Install the coded pourers 2-4 Install the ECU 2-2 Install the software 10-2 Installation game plan 1-6

## Κ

Key assignment list how to define at the computer 10-18 how to define at the ECU 4-6

#### L

Last Z report 8-6 Linefeeds to printer option 3-16 Loopback test 10-22

#### Μ

Make a manager key 4-4 Make a server key 4-5 Manager Menu how to access 1-9 how to navigate 1-11 list of options 1-13 Manager software, how to install 10-2 Managing liquor inventory 13-2

#### Ν

Numbered seals. See Security seals

# 0

Option board, how to install 9-8 Option packages AR. *See* Advanced Reporting option package Basic. *See* Basic option package CR. *See* Electronic Cash Register option package description of 1-2 DX. *See* Deluxe option package FM. *See* Flow Meter option package how to check at the computer 10-24 ID. *See* Server ID option package site assessment for 1-7

#### Ρ

Plastic insert how to change 2-4 how to clean 9-3 PLU report 8-16, 10-16 **PLUs** how to clear 6-10 how to define at the computer 10-12 how to define at the ECU 6-6 how to generate report 8-16 Portion change lockout 6-13 Portion sizes how to clear 6-10 how to define at the computer 10-10 how to define at the ECU 6-4 how to generate a report 8-14 how to lockout changes 6-13 how to reset to regular after pour 5-5 tips on how to assign 13-8 Pour a drink 7-2 Pour with flow meters and server ID 7-6 Pour with server ID 7-4 Pourer inserts. See Plastic insert Pourer Worksheet 13-4 Price format how to define at the computer 10-5 how to define at the ECU 3-4 Price level change how to enable 5-4 Price level change report 8-10 Price levels how to select when pouring 7-2 Price/Portion report 8-14, 10-16 Prices how to clear 6-10 how to define at the computer 10-10 how to define at the ECU 6-5 how to generate a report 8-14 tips on how to assign 13-10 Printer interface to a parallel 2-8 interface to a serial 2-10

#### R

Read a remote server access key 4-3 Read an access key 4-2 Remote server access box 2-14 Repeat a pour how to 7-3 how to set restart pour delay 5-7

Replace the ECU battery 9-4 Reports all server summary 8-18 configuration 8-12 detailed 8-4 hourly sales 8-8 how to generate at the computer 10-20 individual server summary 8-20, 8-22 last Z 8-6 PLU 8-16, 10-16 price level change 8-10 price/portion 8-14, 10-16 summary 8-2 Reset after pour 5-5 Restart pour delay 5-7 Return to factory setup option 3-8 RS-232 to RS 485 converter 2-10, 2-18

#### S

Safety precautions vi terms and symbols vii Security disable unit 5-2 pour with server ID 7-4 security seals 2-4 Security seals 2-4 Select an ECU type 10-6 Serial port setup 3-14 Serial printer 2-18 Server ID how to define list at the computer 10-18 how to define list at the ECU 4-6 how to generate report at the computer 10-18 how to pour with 7-4, 7-6 Server ID option package description of 1-2 how to install a remote server access box 2-14 site assessment for 1-7 Server Menu how to access 1-10 how to enable or disable 5-6 how to navigate 1-11 list of options 1-12 Set flow meter counts at the computer 10-14 at the ECU 6-8 Set flow meter price per unit at the computer 10-14 at the ECU 6-7 Solenoid. See External solenoid output

Specifications 1-5, 11-2 Station number 3-15 Summary reports 8-2 System components 1-4

#### Т

Technical specifications 11-3 Test the system 2-20 Time and date how to set 3-13 how to set date format 3-7 how to set time format 3-6 Time format 3-6 Tools and materials required 1-14 Troubleshooting 12-2

# V

Volume units how to define at the computer 10-5 how to define at the ECU 3-3

## Χ

X reports all server summary 8-18 detailed 8-4 individual server summary 8-20 summary 8-2

# Ζ

Z reports all server summary 8-18 detailed 8-4 individual server summary 8-20 summary 8-2